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The Group has established over half a century, and has been confronted
with the rapid development of technology, the fierce market competition
and the uncertainty of the business environment. We are aware of the
importance of corporate culture in the sustainable development and
management of the Group as well as its indispensable guiding role. The
management hopes to reshape the spirit of the entire corporate culture
by establishing the corporate vision, mission and core values that can
correspond to each other with the development of the Group, in order
to support its long-term development.
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Customer-centricity
LERERFP O

Other than being customer-centric and serving
customers with excellent service standards,
employees should also handle inter-departmental
tasks in an efficient and positive manner.
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Curiosity to Learn
BREBHH

With the rapid development of the society
today, we expect employees to keep up with the
pace of change. The Group not only encourages
employees to propose innovative working
solutions to enhance competitiveness and create
new values for themselves as well as the Group,
but also focuses on professional knowledge
training for employees and their personal
potential development.
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Open-mindedness
l@\l*gFaﬁ EE

The Group encourages employees to have
innovative thinking, take in more information
and equip themselves, think outside the box and
not get restricted by previous successes, in order
to create more possibilities for the Group.

FEESBRESBREANIE  SEINEMRERE
T REEHTPAERNEREDE - BAEELESR
ZAREME o

Collaboration
BB S ERE

The success of an enterprise requires all employees
to work together and make use of their strengths.
Cooperation between departments and close
interactions between employees are particularly
important. The Group also actively promotes a
harmonious and cooperative team spirit, guiding
each employee to maximise their capacities in
their teams.
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Accountability
=EL

Employees should be responsible and have self-
discipline for their job positions, perform their
duties in a positive and earnest manner, work
their best to endeavour for good results, in order
to boost the continuous growth of the business
of the Group and strive for excellence.
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Honest & Open Communication
BHHBEE

The Group is committed to building a corporate
culture with barrier-free communication and
mutual respect. The Group not only encourages
employees to communicate, but also listens to
their useful suggestions or opinions, hoping
employees can understand and listen to each
other with an open mind.
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Sustainability
AREERMN

We will continue to create value together with
the Group’s shareholders, employees, customers
and the social environment, and strive to create
high-quality products and services to implement
the corporate social responsibility spirit.
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Corporate Profile

AT

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) spares no
effort in delivering exceptional, premium products and services
in its specialised fields of photography and imaging solutions,
skincare products, and consumer and professional electronic
products and installation services - satisfying and exceeding
the expectations of customers across the region.

The Group has a long-established business partnership with
FUJIFILM Japan, operating as the sole authorised distributor
of FUJIFILM photography products in Hong Kong and Macau
since 1968 and ASTALIFT skincare products in Hong Kong
since 2010. The Group also operates retail businesses in Hong
Kong, providing photofinishing and imaging solutions and
products through its Fotomax retail chain and selling consumer
electronics products and household electrical appliances
under its AV Life, Life Digital and Wai Ming Electrical brand
names. The Group further leverages its expertise in audio and
visual (“AV") products by delivering professional products to
wholesalers and providing professional AV advisory and custom
design and installation services to customers. In August 2015,
the Group acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong operations
of kikki.K, an international retail chain that sells premium
Scandinavian-designed stationery, gifts and homeware
products. Since July 2019, the Group has taken a new role
providing imaging operations at Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
with a view to bringing in new business in a field where it has
great expertise. All these moves further enable us to provide
customers with high-quality products and services suited to
modern urban lifestyles.

Shares of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (HKSE: 1123).
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Five Years Financial Summary

AP HRE

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March

W3A31BNGEIHEMRRE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BERRE 33,664 38,582 77,192 81,712 68,325
Investment properties REME 245,507 225,436 235,580 227,235 194,240
Right-of-use assets HREEE 93,270 101,507 = = =
Other non-current assets HithERBEE 12,385 12,528 13,815 12,867 13,745
384,826 378,053 326,587 321,814 276,310
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 111,140 169,508 198,549 192,301 154,343
Contract assets, trade receivables, BHNEE BEHEWRE -
prepayments, deposits and EATE - ZER
other receivables HAth FE iR 18 91,815 78,255 109,283 79,641 80,510
Amount due from an associate PR —BHE A ERE - - = 29,105 21,825
Cash and bank balances BeRRITER 282,663 197,314 198,178 219,486 241,180
Other current assets HitnRE&EE 302 232 - 10 618
485,920 445,309 506,010 520,543 498,476
Current liabilities RBAE 163,652 147,449 155,454 121,756 99,625
Net current assets RBEEFE 322,268 297,860 350,556 398,787 398,851
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERE 707,094 675,913 677,143 720,601 675,161
Non-current liabilities IRBEE 63,308 67,382 34,985 29,156 26,408
Equity attributable to owners ERREE ARG ESR
of the Company 644,015 607,073 640,423 690,309 646,900
Non-controlling interests GRS (229) 1,458 1,735 1,136 1,853
Net assets/Total equity BETE RGHHE 643,786 608,531 642,158 691,445 648,753
Consolidated Income Statement for the years ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEENGRERER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB T BB T BET T BT T
Revenue [ 916,750 880,298 959,045 929,839 852,510
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSBLAIFE,(F518) 34,472 (36,054) (44,122) 44,546 (19,095)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frig®i (Bis) K& (2,524) 4,335 (2,239) (5,399) 448
Non-controlling interests FEFIMERER 1,687 2,626 (330) (941) (789)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners &2 F#EE AEWL
of the Company #E/ (E8R) 33,635 (29,093) (46,691) 38,206 (19,436)
Dividends BRE 11,853 - - - -
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREXRA,(HE)
(HK cents) (F84l) 2.84 (2.45) (3.94) 3.22 (1.64)
% % % % %
Debt to equity ratio EREERLE = = = - -
Return on equity ARk ES 5.22 (4.79) (7.29) 5.53 (3.00)
Dividend pay-out ratio REZ 3524 N/ARER NATER NATER NATEBR
Current ratio FENE R 296.92 302.01 325.50 427.53 500.35

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT



Information for Investors

BEEER

LISTING AND STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1123

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot: 2,000 shares

Issued shares as at 31 March 2021: 1,185,318,349 shares
DIVIDEND

Final dividend per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2021:

1 HK cent

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financial Year end
31 March 2021

Announcement of final results
25 June 2021

Closure of Register of Members - Annual General Meeting
10 — 13 August 2021 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
13 August 2021

Closure of Register of Members - Payment of Final Dividend
19 - 20 August 2021 (both days inclusive)

Payment of Final Dividend
8 September 2021

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT AND WEBSITE
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre

220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2409 0294

Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

Website: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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8 H : (852) 2409 0294

EH : enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk
#3f - www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
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Events

EE)

The global pandemic has lasted for more than a year, and 2HEBEARITERE —E L HEER
situation kept worsening during the financial year of 2020/21. 1557 75 2020/21 & = {8 Bf B & /= HA 5
Despite this, FUJIFILM Hong Kong followed the development w2 Rigrsaqp o &Mt » FUJIFILM
frend and launched multiple campaigns and promotions for EEUEEEANRE BFERE
its new products to promote its brand. BT REEE R SR S o

Launch Conference for New X-S10 Digital Camera & Binoculars Series of FUJIFILM
FUJIFILM 237 X-S10 HiS AR EFERBARYIBME

Mr. Stanley Sun, Chief Executive Officer of the Group, introduced our FUJIFILM Hong Kong held a launch conference for the new
products to the press during the event. X-S10 camera in November 2020 at Aberdeen Marina Club,

REEFRAREEL ISR EENEES - anq announced to be thg official agent of FUJINON binoculars
series to enhance its business diversity.

FUJIFILME B 2020 11 A R R E S 21T 7 X-S10$ 1E# 31
EREMENNIEBFUINONE FERFRS - BEEKNZ K ©

FUFILM

N\

X-S10 is equipped with major functions including X-Trans™
CMOS4 sensor with 26.1 megapixels, high-speed image processor
X-Processor 4 and in-body image stabilization (“IBIS").

X-S10# H2610BEEHX-Trans™ CMOS4REREN B EEGRRIESIE
X-Processord » AR ANBHEHPHEZEBINEE ©

FUJIFILM Hong Kong added a "boat tour" session in the event
for the guests to better experience the image stabilization and
telephoto functions of the new cameras and binoculars.

d FUIIFILME 38 B 20855 B D0 38T BB IEMET 3B - B 7 BRE AL
RERITAAM R ERENF EREREMEE -

6 China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited FRi8RRiESEM EEAR A T



The FUJINON binoculars series products including FUJIINON TECHNO-
STABI series, HC series, FMT series, MT series and LB150 series were
displayed at the venue.

B5RRTFUINONEREREBERIIER » BFEFUIINON TECHNO-STABIZ
5~ HCRF ~ FMTZRS ~ MTRSILAKRLB150R % ©

Press Launch for FUJIFILM instax mini 11 Instant Camera
FUJIFILM instax mini 11 ENSZEN B B (E1E 2% 4H H

.

- \ FUJIFILM Hong Kong launched instax mini 11 instant camera in
April 2020, featuring five vivid and fashionable colors — Blush
Pink, Lilac Purple, Sky Blue, Ice White and Charcoal Gray.

FUJIFILM & 7 1420204F 4 A 13 # Hinstax mini 11EIENEAEE - B
RELEECEEREHR  SEBED XKE - BXE - S
AREEIE o

Newly launched films - instax mini BLUE MARBLE and instax
SQUARE WHITE MARBLE.

H7 # 1 JE M — instax mini BLUE MARBLE & instax SQUARE WHITE
MARBLE ©

Annual Report  2020/21 SFEE&ERE 7



Events SEE

Launch Conference for
FUJIFILM instax SQUARE SQ1 Instant Camera
FUJIFILM instax SQUARE SQ1

B BB meE

FUJIFILM Hong Kong held a launch conference for the new instax
SQUARE SQT1 instant camera in October 2020, which displayed all
cameras from the instax SQUARE series and photographic paper specially
for SQUARE cameras. A lot of press joined, making it a lively scene.

FUIIFILMZE 871420205 10 A 8172 $ BN/ BN A A8#instax SQUARE SQ18
& $BIRE R @instax SQUARERFIEH R SQUAREE RBRERR @ &
ZERA  SEAR -

:W llrz.,aur =y,

Mr. Stanley Lo, General Sales Manager of Fuji Photo Products
Company Limited, introduced our products to the press during the event.

ETEYBENERADEELECELRELELTHTOEENEER ©
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FUJIFILM Hong Kong's First Live

Streaming Launch Conference for

GFX100S Digital Camera

FUJIFILM &8 BX4 LB #% GFX100S BiSE# e

ALANEEAERREANSS®

The Frozen Exhibition
by Fotomax - Disney Princess Photo Zone
REIE Frozen 4R - BT AFEIEBTE

Fotomax set up a Disney Princess Photo Zone at Park Central from November
2020 to April 2021 for kids to get dressed in a classic princess look and take
pictures which will be instantly printed as high-quality photos, calendars and
greeting cards. They can choose their dreamy virtual background while taking
photos as if they are the real princesses!

REXN2020F 11 BEZ2021FAAERERDLORBEELTEAZZIREYE - A B
RITHBRKHN AT ERNRNSHRBNERBEENES - FEREF - HRERTA
TEREABINERES  BREALATIEFEINERE !

FUJFILM

FUJIFILM Hong Kong held the first live streaming
launch conference in January 2021, and invited two
X-Photographers to share their feedback on GFX100S
The first live broadcast in the evening attracted
many viewers and netizens to leave comments with
enthusiastic reactions.

FUIFILME BR2021F1 ART T EHER LEERHE &
M5 T MALX-Photographer2 EGFX100SH AR - %
BREERS TREBERRARES » REFEHZ -
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Brand New Products Review
on T E K

FUJIFILM

Digital Camera

LT EL

The brand new GFX100S is a lightweight mirrorless digital
camera that is equipped with a large format sensor and an up to
6.0-stops of five-axis IBIS mechanism. Its compact body weighs
just 900g, which is as light as most of the full-frame cameras.
Such sophisticated design enables the 102-megapixel sensor to
work perfectly with the body, helping photographers to scale
new heights in their creations.

2HGFX100SEBITH K FIEERAAHE  KIGESETHORNAER
BIE > E2E00% - BEEASHEE FRAKEE  BYHRE
1B200BBENBEREARI TELS BB EZ LAEGRNS
& o

Digital Camera

LTSN

X-S10 is equipped with major functions including X-Trans™
CMOS4 sensor with 26.1 megapixels, high-speed image processor
X-Processor 4 and IBIS. Despite the compact body of X-S10,
the exceptional functions presented therein are undoubtedly
astonishing. X-S10 is especially suitable for people who are
seeking lightweight photography equipment while supporting
professional photography and videography.

X-S10$& 26108 B EHIX-Trans™ CMOS4RFE R M = % B = 2 5
ZEX-Processor 4 - URANBHEHESEIEINE - EX-S10M/NIHHRE
£ FERNBRDEBHSARE - XSIOLHESTERARTE
BWAL  WEAEMAERNRRMES -

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited

Digital Camera

ECETIEY

The X series welcome a new member — X-E4 mirrorless digital
camera. Being the medium-end product of rangefinder camera
under the category of FUJIFILM X-Pro, the X-E series make a
surprising comeback after four years in 2021. Comprising the
cutting-edge functions of X series cameras, not only is the
function of the brand new X-E4 improved comprehensively,
but the quality as well as stability of image are also enhanced,
bringing a refreshing photography experience for photography
enthusiasts.

XRFBARAMEE » 2HX-E4ERBEIEAE - X-ERFIERFUIFILM
X-ProfESSiiB M PIRER » 2021 EX-ERVBBAFEERSR » 25
X-EABE TXRIIE R ERIERMEE - TEZHIRABKINE » TE
—SIBBYBEERBEN  AEXEHEASTERAR —FTNETE

Digital Camera

SRS AERE

LARRILETE")

X-T4, the long-awaited flagship mirrorless digital camera in
the X series, brings a brand new experience to photography
enthusiasts. Being hailed as the masterpiece of the X series, the
X-T4 features the world’s fastest, ultra-high-speed continuous
shooting at 15 frames per second, and the fastest autofocus
speed of only 0.02 second. It is also equipped with a 6.5-stops of
5-axis IBIS mechanism, making it another peak of the X series.
XZFIEERBERAFHBEEX- 4R - BREVEANBERBERER
2B o X-TAWBRAXRIINARE - AEERER » BRISRES
FEEREE - UREF0.2VNHREBHEREE - [ - EH#5H6.5
MBISREM S ERS - BRXRIIX —{EE o
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instax mini 11
Instant Camera

m%ﬁﬁ%

an
'- = .».- = f.r
) @

Apr B A2020

Characterised by a unique streamlined body design, the instax
mini 11 features the latest automatic adjustment of exposure and
shutter speed functions, while carrying on the simple operation
features shared among the instax mini series, allowing users to
simplify the shooting process and enjoy the pleasure of instant
shooting.

instax mini 1 1B BB REFEM SR - BREABRHADARBRERR

PIRETNRE - Rinstax miniRFINE R IRE  FERAXELBRESF -
ERZZHRARORE

instax SQUARE RAINBOW
Instant Film

FALEAE RIS BN A JEM

Oct + A2020

instax SQUARE

MARBLE Instant Film

EREIE
BNSZBNAFEMK

l Apr B H2020

FUJIFILM

Instax

instax SQUARE SQ1
Ins’ron’r Camera

BNSZENEAEH

Oct +H2020 ®

The instax SQUARE SQ1 is designed with a modern and
minimalistic style with three special gorgeous colors - Glacier
Blue, Terracotta Orange and Chalk White to create a simple yet
stylish mood to satisfy the fashion taste of photographers.

instax SQUARE SQ1#& 7T RRBNESE - HBIRE=NBHERE -
KINE - AERRRTA  TEMAGEER  BREEEZEHE
YRS 1 R DR ©

instax SQUARE MONOCHROME

Instant Film

2 B BN EIB JEM

I Oct + A2020

beauty is a science

ASTALIFT

D-UV Clear
Aqua Day Serum
SPF50+PA++++

bR Al
SPF50+PA++++

_g

T Apr [ 52020
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Brand Advertisements Review

m R E S K
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beauty is a science

ASTALIFT
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Awards and Corporate Social Responsibility
RIERTEHESE

“Best Professional APS-C Mirrorless Digital Camera

Awqrds Awards — FUJIFILM X-T4" in DCFever The Best
Photographic Product Awards 2020

%?:IE = (+iE S/ 08 %

EACES DCFever B fERER/ 28 M1 X 2€2020

[ EREEERAPS-CE R HIFAHHE K E-FUJIFILM X-T4]

“Best Compact Digital Camera Awards - FUJIFILM
L4 | X100V"” in DCFever The Best Photographic Product
Awards 2020

DCFeverB = #5884 K 482020

[ B AEEE = BB AR K B€—FUJIFILM X100V ]

"Best Professional Digital Camera Awards - FUJIFILM GFX100” in DCFever
The Best Photographic Product Awards 2020
DCFever B fE %/ 28 M1 X 282020

[ BRAEFERBIAAH K E-FUIFILM GFX100]

)

ﬁ
W

e upPLUS (May 2020) Silver Cosme Award of "CIA Gold & Silver Cosme"
upPLUS (May 2020) "CIA%ECosmesR "CosmefR &

e VOCE 2020 First Half Readers' Choice Real Ranking No.4 in the Essence Division
VOCEEREHEIRFE2020.L ¥ HEE 2 EReal RankingfEZEZLHBPI E 41

i
e MAQUIA 2020 First Half Best Cosme UV Care Division No.3
MAQUIA 202045 £ ¥ HfBest Cosme UV Care&BFI5E31u i
I-.

l
|

Greening For The Chest 2020/21 -
= @ — —ay ?'l.
BRBH D 352020/21 -

COI‘pOI‘CI’re SOCiGI ReSponSib"i’fY The Group once again participated in W

STV the Greening For The Chest organised g ——— L
TEHEEE by The Community Chest in 2020/21. e
AEEBRN202021 FLEABREN ' et

BRRH/BDBEH o

Time o I:"
TIDY LP

Front-line Disease Prevention
BIAHEZ T

All frontline retail stores under the Group,
including Fotomax and AV Life, carry out
disinfection and anti-pandemic procedures on
FERAE a regular basis while each front-end employee
is required to wear masks and perform regular
disinfection in stores, in order to create a most
assured service environment for customers and

Greening Office

In response to the impacts from the pandemic, in addition to a series
of anti-pandemic efforts and arrangements, the Group organised an
office cleaning week in March 2021 for a better and more comfortable

- ) ; employees.
workplace so as to enhance working efficiency. With full support and =5 :
engagement of all colleagues in the office, the cleaning week went $§3§Tﬁﬁﬂ'i%??ig ‘\@%'Riﬁﬁ\‘/ Wite
through smoothly and ended with promising results. ERPENEBFELEERTELE  SEARS

IHNFRAEVEREFESER  ARAREIS

SREFE  AEERT —RIINBEEIERZHEN - ER202153 B KRR (AR RS o
WINTIEIE , | m 43 EEE . 8 WE o BIR5; s = =
TMAEFZE » URETERBNEEE > =BRATERE - BAFHESE ® Annual Report  2020/21 FE£&EHRS 13
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Chairman'’s Statement
EFERE

“I believe we are well
positioned to cope with
future uncertainties and

to continue creating and
maintaining long-term
value for our shareholders.”

[BREERMBREESMM - 7
RENEHREHFAREM > It
HBESRRRERERER
E-

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman
BRmiEL

EE

CHKP

PROTECTING CUSTOMERS AND STAFF

The financial year 2020/21 (“FY2020/21") was unprecedented due to
the worldwide disruptions caused by the Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19") pandemic. The first priority for the Group was safety
— for our staff, our customers and the community. In response, we
implemented a wide range of health and safety measures to protect
everyone associated with the Group and its businesses. Flexible
working arrangements during the peak of the outbreak helped our
employees avoid crowds and large office gatherings, and mask-
wearing, daily temperature checks and regular hand sanitisation were
mandatory. Any employee who came in contact with confirmed cases
was required to obtain a negative COVID-19 test before returning
to work, while frontline staff engaged in photo-taking services at
Hong Kong Disneyland Resort had to undergo testing every two
weeks. Our retail stores were regularly disinfected and sanitised with
antivirus coating sprays, and customers’ body temperatures were
checked before entry. These and other measures helped reassure staff
and customers of the safety of our premises and services, and no
confirmed cases of COVID-19 were reported among our employees.
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OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCE
Generally, the Group bore up well under the pandemic conditions.
Our diversified product portfolio helped us maintain sales, which we
were even able to increase in certain areas as others experienced
declines. In addition, our rapid development of online platforms for
various business segments meant that we were able to quickly tap
into the fast-growing trend for online shopping during the year.

The interruptions to international travel and social distancing
restrictions severely affected our photographic products and services
segment. In particular, our photo-taking solution services at Hong
Kong Disneyland Resort faced a substantial drop in visitors numbers
due to major intermittent park closures. The widespread suspension
of commercial activities also negatively affected our B-to-B commercial
and professional AV products segment as well as our professional AV
advisory and custom design and installation services.

By contrast, sales of consumer electronic products and household
appliances surged throughout the year as more people stayed at
home and sought ways to improve their home entertainment options.
In particular, sales of TVs and audio equipment rose significantly,
compensating for decreases in other segments of our business. These
contributions helped push the Group’s revenue by 4.1% year on year
to HK$917 million. The Group also benefitted from pandemic-driven
demand for other new products such as the FUJIFILM Japan Hydro
Ag+ silver ion series of sterilising alcohol sprays and wipes as well as
the professional Fujinon binoculars series, which is popular among
those exploring Hong Kong's great outdoors.

INITIATIVES FOR STABILITY AND GROWTH

The Group continued to respond rapidly to new trends and customer
expectations, especially the growth of e-commerce, and worked
hard to develop the online channels of its various business segments.
Although online sales through the Fotomax site have decreased year
on year due to the overall drop in sales for photofinishing services, we
have seen e-commerce sales of AV Life products jump by over 300%
year on year. In the FUJIFILM e-shop, we introduced more items for
sale and conducted a number of VIP promotions to attract customers
to the platform. We also took steps to support a variety of e-payment
methods and strengthen pre-sales and after-sales interactions between
customers and staff.

Through it all, we continued to impose stringent inventory and
cost management measures to ensure sufficient working capital.
Our negotiations with landlords for rental relief resulted in quite
substantial rent concessions during the year, and we continued to
rationalise our store network and close underperforming stores where
necessary. A number of stock clearance sales also helped us reduce
inventories and avoid tying up capital in stock.
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Chairman’s Statement  EE#RE

The Group benefitted from various Government subsidies offered
to businesses affected by the pandemic, including HK$3.8 million
under the Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme and HK$21.6 million in two
tranches under the Employment Support Scheme. From March to May
2020, the Group introduced unpaid leave for staff and a pay cut for
senior management, but the Government subsidies enabled us to re-
compensate staff in December 2020.

The Group’s robust and prudent responses to the situation over
the past year helped it achieve a net profit to shareholders of
HK$33.6 million in FY2020/21 and increase in cash balance of
HK$85 million as compared to the year ended 31 March 2019
(“FY2019/20"). In accordance with the Group’s dividend policy,
and given its sound financial position, the Board of Directors
(the”Board”) recommends payment of a final dividend of
1 HK cent per ordinary share for the year.

OUTLOOK

From a macro perspective, the global introduction of mass vaccination
programmes has led to a more positive outlook and expectations of
an eventual global economic rebound. The Group is looking forward
to the gradual re-opening of borders and relaxing of social distancing
measures as important steps towards recovering sales of our
photography-related products and services. However, we do recognise
that the resumption of international travel is likely to be slow and that
it may take time for sales of these products and services to regain
momentum. Meanwhile, the FY2020/21 sales boom in consumer and
electronic products and household appliances is expected to moderate
in the coming year as the effects of the pandemic ease.

Semiconductors are key components in many of the products sold by
the Group, so the global semiconductor shortage that has developed
since the past year could potentially present inventory management
challenges for the Group in the near future. We expect to experience
supply shortages of certain items such as cameras and TVs, or
increases in the costs of these items. The management of the Group is
in close communication with suppliers and regularly review inventory
levels with them, adjusting our procurement plans to respond to
changes and expected shortages. We will also be looking to expand
our stock portfolio and increase the variety of our product offerings
where possible.

In light of the rising popularity of e-shopping during the pandemic,
the Group recognises the need to offer a full suite of user-friendly
e-commerce options, and we will be pouring more resources into
developing our e-commerce capabilities. Other areas of focus will
include developing mobile apps to deliver pre-sales and after-sales
services that give customers a personalised and tailored experience.
Professional product training will remain a priority as technology
advances, especially for products such as cameras and electrical
appliances.

AEESERBNOZREFELEIRHENEE
BB SR ERTEXEYEEEYE
BISVEREBRMETEE S WL E BB
2,160B 7T » HAKREER2020F38 258 EE
TEIEHFNRBRESREEB R L » B
BFmEL%E BB LUR2020E 12BEHBE
BT o

AEBRBE-—FEEZMT  KRNELIMBEE
HIFEST I8 HE - 1EFY2020/2 14318 IR SR FEAL S FE
B3 30B TR RS AHBREEE2019F3 831
BIEEE(TFY2019/20 ) hnB#8,500& Jt °
BREAEENREEE  YZEINHHBRRE
2 EEE((ES2))EEIAFERMNRERKR
BEERITERIEBM -

BRE
REBAEMS @ tRASHHBELEZNRES
EEE > FERATEHEREEEHR > AISE
R o REBBIBREESR R BEHE
BESHESHEEREZFHRMANBZEEER
RIRBEREEEEFH - A » RPIEEEEKIR
EREMERE  ERERRBREEERERS
SENERA - BELLERE - FY2020R21KBES
ERRIASREESENA  HADFEHIRKRE
BHEEREFEERMMER

HRYEERAEEMHERVPERNEER
Bt BBE-—FHBENZRFERERE
KESAKERNEHNANERFEEERE - &M
R EEEARRERSE TERBEERRIZ
EERNEAEESEM - REBEEERMER
REZRREBEREHRNEFEKT - EMARK
BEt 8 EHBESCRARER - RATEE
HAREMNEFAS @ BURENEMNER
B -

ENEFEHNEEFEYERRT  AEEZHED
ERERESESRANETRHERERR » I
RHREZERBREMNVEFHERLD - HiEE
AERSOERBERBEARN - AEFREHERE
MEERNEAMRERRBER - BMRBREAH
AR  HEXNERZIBNHELESL  £LH
EEMEERSERLE °

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT



In terms of brand-building, we will be exploring innovative new ways
to make consumers aware of our brands and the people behind
them. For example, we are looking to introduce our professional
retail staff from brands such as AV Life and Fotomax on social media
platforms via video-sharing to increase engagement for both staff and
customers.

Although the impact of COVID-19 on Hong Kong has eased in recent
months, there remain severe challenges in controlling the pandemic
globally. Consequently, the macro environment remains uncertain,
and it is difficult to predict the twists and turns that may lie ahead.
Nevertheless, the relative success the Group has had in navigating
the turbulence of the pandemic so far gives us optimism for the
future. Despite a year or more of severe disruptions to business and
the economy, we have managed to maintain good relationships with
suppliers, loyal and dedicated teams, flexible sales strategies and
consistent operational excellence. Our balance sheet remains steady
and our financial situation is strong. Based on all this, | believe we
are well positioned to cope with future uncertainties and to continue
creating and maintaining long-term value for our shareholders.

None of this would be possible without the support of many parties,
especially our loyal staff. | would also like to give my sincerest thanks
to our customers, suppliers, service providers and landlords for
supporting us and standing by us in tough times.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEETTWw N DT

OVERALL REVIEW

Despite the challenges of COVID-19 on the economy in Hong Kong
and globally, the Group’s revenue for FY2020/21 was 4.1% higher
than the previous year and it recorded total revenue of HK$917
million. A number of factors, both internal and external, contributed
to this result. Although sales in the Group’s photographic segment
fell significantly due to travel restrictions and the weaker economy,
this was largely offset by increased sales in its consumer electronic
products and household appliances segment. In particular, the Group
enjoyed a surge in demand for high-quality home entertainment
products such as TVs and audio equipment as people spent more time
than ever at home.

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year was HK$33.6 million (against a net loss of HK$29.1 million in
FY2019/20). The positive result was also partly due to management
paying close attention to cost control during the year, with a focus on
stringent inventory control and maintaining a healthy level of working
capital. Negotiations with landlords for rental relief resulted in HK$2.7
million in rent concessions during the year. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to rationalise its store network and close underperforming
stores. Fee reductions were also sought from business partners. Due
to the reduced traffic, the operating hours of certain Fotomax stores
were shortened periodically during the year, which contributed to
reduced fixed store expenses and staff costs. In addition, the Group
undertook a series of aggressive stock clearance sales — particularly in
segments selling photographic products and B-to-B commercial and
professional AV products — in order to optimise inventory levels and
maintain good working capital.

During the year, the Group received various subsidies from the
Government under its Anti-epidemic Fund, amounting to HK$25.5
million in total. It also recorded a HK$19.4 million gain in the fair
value of its investment properties in FY2020/21 against a loss of
HK$3.6 million in the previous year, and a net exchange gain of
HK$2.3 million for the year compared with a net loss of HK$2.7
million in FY2019/20. In FY2019/20, an impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$8.2 million was
applied to the Group’s retail store assets of Fotomax and AV Life,
whereas in FY 2020/21, the impairment amounted to HK$3.0 million
was mainly related to the Fotomax operation. Also, in FY2020/21,
there was a write-back for provision of inventories of HK$4.2 million
following the successful clearance of aged inventories against a
provision of HK$2.6 million in FY2019/20.

Earnings per share amounted to 2.84 HK cents (FY2019/20 loss per
share: 2.45 HK cents). The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share for the year.
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MERCHANDISING

Photographic Products

Results for the Group’s photographic products segment were
severely affected by the pandemic, with sales of digital cameras
and lenses dropping by 14.7% year on year and sales of instant
cameras and films falling by 35.6%. Compulsory mask-wearing
and tough restrictions on the size of social gatherings for events
such as weddings led to significantly fewer occasions for photo-
taking, and the reduction of commercial activities also decreased
the amount of opportunities to use instax products. In addition,
global travel restrictions saw many Hong Kongers having to cancel
their overseas vacation plans, which in turn lowered their incentive
to purchase new cameras. Generally, the contracting economy and
rising unemployment dampened spending across the board, especially
for non-essential and luxury items such as high-end cameras and
accessories. Furthermore, not all cameras were available for purchase
on schedule due to global labour shortages and an on-going shortage
of semiconductor components.

Nevertheless, the Group launched three new digital camera models
during the year: the X-T4 in April 2020, the X-510 in November 2020
and the GFX100S in March 2021. The large-format, high-mobility
GFX100S was highly acclaimed by reviewers, and the Group’s pre-
sales order programme resulted in its entire pre-sales quota for the
model being snapped up quickly. A number of new lens models were
also made available during the year, including the XF50mm F1.0 in
September 2020 and the XF10-24 WR in November 2020. In March
2021, three more new lenses came onto the market: the GF80mm
F1.7, XF27mm WR and XF70-300. A number of instax products were
also launched during the year. The instax mini 11 and instax WIDE
300 Toffee instant cameras appeared in April 2020, and the instax
SQUARE SQ1 instant camera and instax SQUARE films RAINBOW and
MONOCHROME were introduced in October 2020.

The Group adopted an aggressive inventory management approach
over the year to avoid stock build-up and stimulate sales. A number of
stock clearance sales provided good results, and much care was taken
to improve its inventory procurement plan balancing likely market
demand with supply lead time. Throughout the year, promotional
events for new products had to be curtailed due to pandemic-driven
social distancing measures, but a few small-scale product events were
still organised for the media for the X-T4 and X-S10 digital cameras
and the instax mini 11 and instax SQUARE SQ1 instant cameras.

Marketing efforts for the GFX100S digital camera were primarily
conducted online. One highlight was an hour-long Facebook
livestream event held to introduce the camera’s unique features,
followed by a session with two X-series professional photographers
who shared their own experiences using the camera and tips on its
operation. Overall, the livestream proved to be a successful, cost-
effective means of generating customer interest and contributed to
some outstanding pre-sales for this product.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIEEztm Kk 2

Every year, many of the Group’s camera models receive sought-
after industry awards. In the Best Photographic Product Awards 2020
organised by DCFever magazine, winning Group products included
the X100V (“Best Compact Digital Camera”), X-T4 (“Best Professional
APS-C Mirrorless Digital Camera”) and GFX100 (“Best Professional
Digital Camera”). This year the Group once again sponsored Hong
Kong Photographic Culture Association Limited, contributing HK$1.5
million to help it promote photography, photo culture and the
photographic industry in Hong Kong.

Consumer Electronic Products and Household Appliances

This segment, which mainly operates under the respected, high-
end AV Life brand, enjoyed a successful year as sales rose 29.0%
compared to last year. As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated a
total of 13 shops, the same as the previous year. The Group closed
its IFC AV Life shop in July 2020, replacing it with one in the nearby
Prince’s Building. The new Prince’s Building shop has achieved a sales
level on a par with the old IFC location, but the rental cost of the
premises is much lower.

Excluding the IFC and Prince’s Building stores, the segment’s same
store sales increased by 32.0% vyear on year overall. This positive
result was largely driven by changes brought about by the pandemic
— specifically, greater demand for AV equipment and higher spending
due to unspent holiday budgets. Also, store sales benefitted from
aggressive promotions carried out by certain shopping malls to attract
customers. Overall, transaction orders from stores were up by 8.6%
year on year while average ticket size per transaction increased
by 25.3% compared to the same period last year. Meanwhile, the
brand’s online platform AVLife.com, which was fully launched in
November 2019, benefitted from consumers’ increasing enthusiasm
about online shopping. Together with online sales made via third-party
online platforms like Price.com, the Group’s e-commerce business for
this segment was up by three times year on year, accounting for 4.5%
of the segment’s total sales.

By product categories, AV sales (including products such as TVs, hi-fi
units, amplifiers, sound bars and speakers) were up by 35.1% year on
year. Sales of home appliances (items like refrigerators, air conditioners
and washing machines), on the other hand, dropped slightly by 3.6%.
Sales of 3C products (computer accessories, consumer electronics and
communications products) fell by 17.4%. This was primarily due to
the weak performance of the Group’s Life Digital shop in IFC, which
mainly targeted expats and travellers.
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The AV Life management team was cautious about managing
inventory levels in this challenging period, especially given the
uncertain COVID-19 situation and shortage in the global supply of
semiconductors. The Group made special effort to maintain a steady
supply of popular, high-turnover items and achieved considerable
success in this regard. In terms of marketing and promotion, the AV
Life brand enhanced its product displays in certain high-end stores to
emphasise its pioneering role in the field of TV and audio equipment.
Substantial advertising was conducted via social media, including a
series of videos on YouTube and other social media platforms in which
audio experts and influencers promoted key products. The Facebook
page of AV Life was regularly updated with product promotions and
customer engagement activities. The Group also collaborated with
vendors to offer seasonal discounts and gifts during major festive
periods, and it ran exclusive VIP member promotions periodically
throughout the year.

B-to-B Commercial and Professional AV Products

Sales in this segment dropped by 18.8% year on year. Many social
and commercial activities were cancelled, postponed or scaled down
significantly, including events such as exhibitions, weddings and
religious functions as well as those at public venues such as lecture
theatres, bars and clubs. Many commercial venues put their plans
of installing or upgrading AV facilities for public viewing on hold
as patronage disappeared. At the same time, many commercial
organisations cut back on their capital expenditure budgets, and AV
facilities were often among the first areas to suffer. Even confirmed
projects were delayed due to work-from-home arrangements being
imposed in many organisations.

In response, the segment focused on inventory management
by holding clearance sales throughout the year to maintain
viable stock levels. Management also continued to source new
items in response to changing market demand. Attention was
paid to active brand-building on social media, with regular
updates made on the segment’s Facebook page, “Pro Audio
Development Ltd”. The Group also launched a revamped website
(http://www.proaudio.com.hk) and an e-shop for the segment in
March 2021, tapping into the increasing demand for professional AV
items in private homes.

Skincare Products

The Group's skincare brand ASTALIFT performed well during the year,
with sales and average ticket size per transaction remaining steady
compared to the previous year. Because most of the Group’s skincare
customers are locals who regard skincare as an essential part of
their daily lives, the effects of the pandemic on this segment were
minimal. The ASTALIFT consignment counter in AEON in Taikoo and
the Group’s own FUJIFILM Studio store in Causeway Bay did suffer a
combined decline of 23.6% in sales of ASTALIFT products, but this
was more than offset by an 18.6% year-on-year rise in online sales,
which now make up 63.6% of total sales for this segment.
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The ASTALIFT website (http://www.astalift.com.hk) is the segment’s
primary platform for online sales. It has been operating strongly for
several years, helping the brand establish a loyal and enthusiastic
customer base. Recent improvements in transaction flows have helped
guarantee payment gateway security and further increase customer
trust in the ASTALIFT online experience.

Best-selling ASTALIFT products for the year included collagen drinks
that made up 24.8% of total sales, followed by Jelly Aquarysta
(22.2%) and D-UV Clear products (9.4%). During the year, two new
anti-UV products were launched: ASTALIFT Drink White Shield (in
July 2020) and D-UV Clear Aqua Day Serum SPF50+ PA++++ (in April
2020). The latter offers the highest UV protection of all ASTALIFT
products. Due to low traffic at physical outlets where customers
traditionally try out new products, the Group sent sample sachets out
to prospective customers by post. Most of the year’'s promotional and
marketing events were conducted via social media such as Facebook
and Instagram, including the successful “BeTrulyYou” campaign in
conjunction with Jelly Aquarysta that featured KOL recommendations
on various platforms. Other initiatives included flash discount sales
at counters, a New Year lucky bag promotion and a Loyalty Member
product redemption programme.

SERVICING

Photographic and Technical Services

Fotomax sales fell by 20.0% year on year. Traditional photo
developing and processing (“DP”) sales were hit hardest, decreasing
by 24.9% alongside a 31.0% drop in total print count. ID photo-
taking sales, meanwhile, saw a decline of 27.6% with a 26.0% drop
in print count. Series of anti-pandemic measures, like compulsory
mask-wearing and limits on social and commercial gatherings
dampened enthusiasm for photo-taking. Travel restrictions further
affected DP sales and also suppressed demand for ID photos for items
such as passports and visas.

The large reduction in social gatherings and events also impacted
demand for imaging gifts. Sales of items such as photobooks,
calendars and greeting cards dropped by 28.4%, while photobook
sales fell by 27.6%. By contrast, sales for the Group’s one-stop
document solution DocuXpress increased by 4.6%, though at a more
moderate pace than in previous years. The rise was mainly driven by
a spike in applications for British National (Overseas) passports — a
process that requires full-colour copies of the entire passport to be
submitted — as well as an overall reduction in the number of printing
operators in the market.
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As at 31 March 2021, 56 Fotomax stores were operating as compared
to 58 a year earlier. Same-store sales fell by 18.3% year on year.
Despite the increased popularity of e-shopping, online sales decreased
by 10.4% (with online DP sales down by 5.6% and online imaging
gift sales down by 22.5%) as the demand for non-essential gift items
dropped. To attract customers, the Group’s product development
team focused on new imaging product offerings for home décor,
including frameless photo canvas and photo jigsaw puzzles for
framing and hanging.

In terms of marketing, the Group collaborated with numerous partners
on joint promotions of its products and services throughout the year.
Apart from Groupbuy promotions, it worked with third parties such
as Something Wanted, HKBN, Moneyback, TSL Jewellery and China
Telecom on a series of exclusive offers. From July to December 2020,
the Group promoted items for children through collaborations with
milk powder brand Wyeth and local illustrator Bigsoil (KJf€). As usual,
seasonal promotions for greeting cards, calendars and fai chun were
carried o ut for major festivals. The Fotomax website (http:/www.
fotomax.com) was also revamped during the year, with a focus on
enhancing its appeal for younger customers. The website now includes
a section titled “Inspiration”, which suggests imaging gift ideas for
different target customers and features articles by professional and
amateur photographers as well as people working in the photography
industry. Promotional activities included regular updates to the
Fotomax Facebook and Instagram pages, one of which was a powerful
video shot by three pairs of KOLs about how photographs capture
and retain memories of precious things. During the year, the number
of Fotomax members increased by 4.1%.

The Group's imaging solution service at Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
suffered from the fact that the park was closed for much of the year
due to the pandemic, which resulted in a sales drop of 84.1% as
compared to the previous year. On the 107 days when the park was
open, most visitors were locals for whom in-park photo-taking was
not their priority, especially given compulsory mask-wearing mandates.
On the other hand, in the second half of the year, the Group set up
a photo-shooting booth in the Disney Princess Virtual Photo Shooting
Zone in the Frozen Exhibition held in Park Central in Tseung Kwan O.
The event achieved good results despite a period when the event had
to be suspended due to the pandemic.
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Professional AV Advisory and Custom Design and Installation
Services

Sales for this segment saw just a slight year-on-year decrease of 1.1%
despite the fact that many commercial upgrading or improvement
projects were suspended or cancelled during the year as commercial
organisations tightened their belts. This was offset to an extent by
a rise in the number of individual customers looking to upgrade the
AV systems in their homes. Many boat owners also spent on these
features for their vessels as private boating took off during the
pandemic.

The number of maintenance contracts increased by 12.1% year on
year as more commercial customers chose to maintain their existing
equipment rather than spend large sums on new items. In all,
commercial project sales were down by 24.6% for the year, non-
commercial project sales rose by 13.0% and maintenance contract
sales increased by 36.8%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's financial resources remain strong. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group was debt-free and had cash and bank balances of HK$283
million, representing an increase of 43.3% compared with the end of
March 2020. The Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current and
future working capital requirements.

OTHER WORKING CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s trade receivables stood at HK$46
million while its inventories were worth HK$111 million. The Group
put special effort into managing credit control and debt collection. A
cautious inventory management strategy was adopted, resulting in the
Group's inventory level dropping by 34.4% compared to the end of
March 2020.

TREASURY POLICIES

It is the Group's treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly leveraged or speculative derivatives products. The
Group continues to adopt a conservative approach to financial risk
management, reviewing its policies on a regular basis.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

During the year, the Group invested HK$10.2 million in the purchase
of tangible assets including machinery and equipment, leasehold
improvements and office equipment. All of these capital expenditures
were financed from internal resources.

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (31
March 2020: nil), while its capital commitments as at 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$0.5 million (FY2019/20: HK$2.7 million).

CORPORATE CULTURE
The Group’s corporate culture remains centred around its clearly
articulated Vision, Mission and Core Values:

Vision: To make where we operate a better place

Mission: To enhance the quality of life of our customers by

providing quality products and services

Core Values:  Customer-centricity; curiosity to learn; open-mindedness;
collaboration; accountability; honest & open communication;

and sustainability

The Core Values drive a culture of transparent and accountable
corporate governance, which includes regular performance reviews
conducted by independent parties. The Group also fosters a corporate
culture promoting close, human-based interaction with staff,
customers and other stakeholders. The goal is to generate a warm
family atmosphere in which all are at ease.

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 525 staff (31 March
2020: 527). This year, a comprehensive Key Performance Indicators
("KPI") programme was implemented, designed to identify ways in
which the Group can further enhance its operational efficiency and
measure staff performance in a fairer and more comprehensive way.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to support its staff through various
training activities, all carried out responsibly within the constraints
of anti-pandemic measures. For more details of staff development
and training initiatives, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report on pages 30 to 56.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Due to the pandemic, volunteer services organised by the Social
Responsibility Team were all necessarily suspended. The focus of the
Group's social responsibility commitments instead shifted to protecting
staff and customers and supporting the Government's efforts to
overcome COVID-19. However, the Group continued to engage in a
number of charity and sponsorship events for community investment.
Details of these can be found on page 56 of the ESG Report.
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Executive Directors’ Information

HITESER

MR. SUN TAO HUNG STANLEY
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 43, was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the Company and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 1 April 2006. He joined the
Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for the supervision of the
overall marketing and sales areas as well as the Group’s business
development. He is also the managing director of Fuji Photo Products
Company, Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Sun has worked in Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd., both in Japan
and the United States of America, where he conducted marketing
work for their imaging business. Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Master of Business Administration degree from Cornell
University, Ithaca, New York, USA. He is the elder son of Dr. Sun Tai
Lun Dennis, Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the Company,
and the elder brother of Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an Executive Director
of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group.

MR. SUN TAO HSI RYAN
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER (“COQ")

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2018. He was also appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Group on 1 April 2019, responsible
for the Group’s operation management, particularly in IT and logistics
sectors. Mr. Sun graduated from Widener University, Pennsylvania,
USA with double degrees in Accounting Business Administration
and Hospitality Management. Besides, he had spent 3 years in a
military academy in his high school years. Mr. Sun is a member of
The Y. Elites Association (“YEA") and a vice president of the Business
Development Research Association in YEA. He is also the chairman
of Raimondi Alumni Association. Mr. Sun is currently the managing
director of Fotomax (F.E.) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Sun is the second son of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the Chairman
and a Non-executive Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr. Sun Tao Hung Sjtanley, an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group.

MS. CHAN WAI KWAN RITA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (“CFO”) & COMPANY
SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan, Rita, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of the Group
with effect from 1 April 2019. Ms. Chan is also the Company
Secretary of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 2005 and
is currently responsible for financial reporting, tax and investment
advisory, company secretarial matters as well as corporate resources
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chan had worked in
one of the “Big 4" accounting firms in Hong Kong for 6 years. She
has over 15 years of professional experiences in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a graduate
of its 2018 Financial Controllership Programme.
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Non-executive Directors’ Information

FATESEH

DR. SUN TAI LUN DENNIS
CHAIRMAN

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, JP, aged 70, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 6 July 1994 and was then
appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 1996.
Dr. Sun was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 14 August 2020. Dr. Sun is currently
a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association, Life Honorary Advisor of the Photographic Society of
Hong Kong, and Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 896), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999
and appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Dr. Sun holds a Doctor of Pharmacy in the University of Oklahoma,
USA and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business Administration
from Southern California University for Professional Studies, USA.
He is the Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong Kong and
Chapter Honoree of the City University of Hong Kong Chapter of Beta
Gamma Sigma. He is the son of Mr. Sun Chieh Yeh, former Honorary
Chairman and founder of the Company. Dr. Sun is the father of
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an Executive Director of the Company and
Chief Operating Officer of the Group.

MR. FUNG YUE CHUN STEPHEN

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, aged 45, was appointed as the Non-
executive Director of the Company on 8 April 2015. He is currently a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Fung joined the
Fung Group in 2001. He is the founder and the chief executive officer
of Fung Kids Fashion (Holding) Limited, overseeing the children’s
apparel, footwear and accessories retailing business. He has extensive
experience in the retail industry and holds positions as a director of
Fung Retailing Limited, a director of Toys“R”Us Asia and a director of
Suhyang Networks Co., Ltd. Starting from 2019, Mr. Fung has been
appointed as the Fung Group’s China President, representing the
interests of the Fung Group in China and driving growth in this critical
market.

Prior to joining the Fung Group, Mr. Fung gained his experiences by
working in an internet incubator and a private equity company in
New York. He was also the Vice President of Portfolio Management
at Aetos Japan, an asset management firm that focuses on real estate
assets. Mr. Fung graduated from Boston College with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and holds an MBA degree of the
International University of Japan.
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B TEFER

MR. LI KA FAI DAVID

Mr. Li Ka Fai David, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 September 2004. He
is currently the chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Li is currently the senior advisor of SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. He is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK.

Mr. Li is an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 120); an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee, a member
of the nomination committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee of China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 144); an independent non-executive director, a member of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 232); an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of Goldlion Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 533); an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited (Stock Code: 563) and an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of audit committee of Wai Yuen Tong
Medicine Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 897), which are all listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li retired as an independent non-executive
director and ceased to be the chairman of the audit committee,
a member of the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of CR Construction Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1582), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with
effect from the conclusion of the company’s annual general meeting
held on 25 June 2021.

MR. LIU HUI ALLAN

Mr. Liu Hui Allan, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 28 June 2007. He is currently a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated
from the Beijing University of International Business and Economics
and the Westminster University of United Kingdom. Mr. Liu has
over 30 years of experience in foreign direct investments in China,
especially in the consumer and retail sectors. He was formerly the
president of The China Retail Fund LDC, a direct investment fund he
founded in 1996, co-sponsored by American International Group. Mr.
Liu has also been a partner of the private equity business of PAG, a
Pan Asian asset management group managing US$20 billion. Mr. Liu
is currently serving as a partner of an US asset management company,
Versant Group and its Asia chairman.
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DR. WONG CHI YUN ALLAN

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan, GBS, MBE, JP, aged 70, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28
October 1997. He is currently the chairman of the nomination
committee, the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. Wong is the
chairman, an executive director and the group chief executive officer
of VTech Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 303), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, and he cofounded in 1976. Dr. Wong holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from The
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science degree in Electrical
and Computer Engineering from the University of Wisconsin and an
Honorary Doctorate of Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is the deputy chairman and an independent non-
executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (Stock Code: 23),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He retired as an independent
non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 66),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (2015-2020) and Li & Fung
Limited, the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange was withdrawn
with effect from 27 May 2020 (1999-2020).
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RIR - HERERRS

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The Group is delighted to present its seventh ESG report (the”Report”)
of the Group. As a renowned brand in Hong Kong, the Group has
been committed to bringing quality services and products for over half
a century.

At the same time, the Group remains vigilant to the potential
environmental and social impacts that its business may have on the
environment and the communities where it operates. Therefore, the
Group has been progressively incorporating sustainable practices and
measures into its daily operations by the Group’s ESG Committee. This
year, the ESG Committee has led different ESG initiatives including
green procurement measures.

As nations are confronted with the challenges brought on by
COVID-19, the Group’s unwavering commitment to providing safe
and high-quality products to its customers is particularly important at
this juncture. The continued success of the Group and its products
could not be achieved without the effort from all of its employees.
Therefore, the Group has promptly implemented official COVID-19
procedures to safeguard the health of its employees and their families.

To further the Group's dedication to reducing environmental and
social impact, the Group has incorporated different green office
initiatives, including the development of e-forms and materials
recycling. During FY2020/21, the Group has reduced GHG emissions
by 38%. The Group's remain steadfast despite the unprecedented
circumstances brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic and climate
change. Moving forward, the Group will continue to work towards
a more sustainable future through active collaboration with its
stakeholders.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures
being taken during FY2020/21 (the “Reporting Period”), which runs
consistent with the Annual Report of the Group. Aligned with the
previous reporting practice, the scope of this ESG Report continues
to cover operations of the head office and the retail and distribution
businesses in Hong Kong. The Group will consider expanding the
scope of reporting where appropriate.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

To provide stakeholders with an overview of the Group's performance
in ESG aspects, the ESG Report discloses environmental KPIs under the
“comply or explain” provisions, and is prepared with reference to the
fundamental reporting principles set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

1. Materiality:
A materiality assessment was performed to review ESG materiality
based on stakeholder engagement processes. The results
determined material ESG aspects to the Group.

2. Quantitative:
ESG performances are kept track and presented in a systematic
manner. Where applicable, year-to-year data are compared, and
the implication is discussed.

3. Balance:
This Report provides an unbiased picture of the ESG performance
of the Group - both achievements and rooms for improvement
are discussed.

4. Consistency:
Consistent methodologies are adopted in this Report to allow for
a fair comparison of performance over time.

The Group has established internal controls and a formal review
process to ensure that any information presented in this ESG Report
is as accurate and reliable as possible. The ESG Committee of the
Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and disclosure
of relevant measures and KPIs. This Report has been approved by the
ESG Committee and the Board.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group’s ESG Committee, chaired by COO, has the responsibility
for overseeing the Group’s sustainability policies, initiatives and
performance, principally in respect of the environment, workplace,
supply chains and community. It also defines the Group's sustainability
strategies and sets objectives. The following is the composition of the
ESG Committee:

Board of
Directors

Exg

ESG Committee:
COO (Chairman), CEO, CFO

RE HERERZEE —
BESEME (XF) 1THeE -
BE M HRE

B  #deREEMNE

AEECRE  HERERZETHEREERAE
BEXRE TEEEHRRKR - THESH - HEE
FHEFEEEREE 2 THEMEE  BlRkE
B BEHEARE 2 IHFEEBRLET L BE -
BE  #HERERZEE2ARNT ¢

Department Managers
(Task Force)
EBP AR
(IEE)

Business units-General Managers
(Task Force)
E /v Ersi
(TfE/ME)
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the overall responsibility of overseeing the Group's
ESG risk management and internal controls with the support of the
top management. A review of the Group’s approaches in addressing
the ESG risks and opportunities is conducted regularly to ensure the
effectiveness.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Effective feedback from stakeholders contributes to the impartial and
sustainable evaluation of the ESG performance. Therefore, the Group
engages in regular communication with stakeholders in an open,
honest, and positive manner through a variety of channels, including
survey and regular engagement sessions.

The following table shows the Group’s stakeholders, respective
communication channels and their expectations and concerns being
raised:

Stakeholders Communication channels

FihE BBRE
Employees
(==

Non-profit organizations (NPOs)

FEERIHAE

Suppliers

HEERE

RpEE
EEEESREEASNIBTRAEEREER
B HERELARBEERANEENDIESE -
EHMNARERYRE - B RERRBRREE
HTe - UBRB T 2B ©

tEdvE-E3-
BOENRERTARNTBUFETMRE - B8R
ERRR Bt AREBBZEERRE - 81
AEREHSHEGE  UARK - HERBEENREE
BENEETHER -

TRIITAEE2HEGE - BEEBBRERKSR
HHHE R EE

Expectations and concerns

HEREE

e Operational direction, strategy,
objective and policy

e Remuneration package

e Employee development and training

o REHME - K - BEREE

o HiEffFiE

o EEHERE

e Employee’s participation

e Clear and comprehensive community
participation policy

e Reasonable resources allocated to
social and environmental issues

c EESH
o FBWiZENHESEEE
s MUBRBRERESESBRER

e Fair and open procurement

e Compliant operation

o DFAREREE

s BRKE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
The Group has developed a Stakeholder and Materiality Assessment
Survey to ensure engagement activities are carried out on a systematic

BTN

FEFCRERNEREZMFEAEAE - UERS
ESEB RS RS M hET o BERKZME

and target-oriented basis. The summary of the engagement strategy is ~ #0°F :
as follows:
Select & invite Design Distribute
stakeholders questionnaire questionnaire
i M & Beiike e ke

Visualize &
report result

BB RRESR

M Quantitative assessment

B{CHTHE

Aligment with internal stakeholder

BIBNEFHERE

To ensure the Group’s disclosures continue to reflect its significant
ESG impacts, the Group undertook an online Stakeholder and
Materiality Assessment Survey during the Reporting Period to assess
the materiality of the topics. Stakeholders of different categories
were included in the survey. The result of the materiality assessment
provides insight into potentially overlooked ESG issues raised by
different stakeholder groups, thus enabling the Group to develop
effective long-term ESG strategies.

The outcome of the materiality assessment survey is presented in the
following materiality matrix:

Interpret result
RIFEAER

Research / analysis / reporting

WE/ DI HE

Analyze result
DATEE

M Qualitative analysis
EMDHT

ARRIAEEACHBEFERMRAERRE - #HER
ERTE  FREERBENRETRIENERE
EMFEAEUNMZEZEZEEN - TEER
NEFEDETRAREZD - EBMTEZEREY
RAT BT R E A B ATIR AT R AR VIR
B HERERERE  SEAEESUBRERERN
WIRIE - HEREARR -

EEMMEAECNERE2FINUTEEMAER ¢

Ranking of ESG Materiality — External vs Internal

RIE e hEnnds®

EEVHEF — SNERER D

5 Product integrity
EnfER
TG UEh Health & safety Corporate governance
supply cgiﬁggg%gégg REERRE and risk management
45 T RAE J| / PEEARBREE
® — Information security and
Talent Management personal date protection
Caring for the Community ATER 5! ERREREAANRE
pregipe. L4 Equal Opportunities
4 fAEt R 1 Py ° Fasper
Product environmental Employee benefits and welfare
E | stewardship g & B RAEA
xterna EREHREE o
(L\l POs, SLl;lpplz'er5> Soild waste and Anti-competitive practice
SN (GEEFIiiE ol e "I
i Bl Y R YY)
)
3 Energy and climate
protection
BER KR R (R &
2.5
2
2 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3

Internal (Employees)

A (lEB)
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List of ESG topics by materiality assessment results: UBEMFEERFFZEES  HERELAZEE
BMT
Ranking Topics Descriptions
2354 BE it
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List of ESG topics by materiality assessment results (continued): UEEMEERFEFZRE  dERERBES
BT ()

Ranking Descriptions

2353 it
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The most concerned material topic is “Product integrity”, “Corporate
governance and risk” and “Information security and personal
data protection”, followed by “Health and safety” and “Equal
opportunities”.

The Group believed that appropriate and effective risk management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues are in place and
confirmed the information disclosed in the ESG Report meets the ESG
Reporting Guide requirement.

A. ENVIRONMENT

1.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG
Emission”) during the Reporting Period were approximately
800 tonnes CO,e ("tCO,e”) with an intensity of
approximately 1.5 tCO,e per employee.

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity
was the major source of the Group’s GHG emissions,
followed by direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from the fuel
combustion of 5 group-owned EURO VI trucks. Disposal of
paper waste contributed to the Group’s other indirect GHG
emissions (Scope 3).

The Group has established internal guidelines to promote its
environmental policy and put in place various energy-saving
initiatives as stated in Section A.3 of this Report.

The total GHG emissions have decreased by 38.0% during
the Reporting Period. The Group considers such decrease
was due to the effect of local epidemic prevention measures
to the office and local retail stores, therefore decreased in
direct emission and indirect emissions. In addition, the Group
believes existing measures help reduce GHG emissions.

EEEINEAZEREREE] [EXEAREA
BIRIMEEREREAENRE] HRXBRER
Z2 K[ PEHE]-

AEEAEEMRRE  HERELAZENETEES
HHEREERRRAMERRS - WRIARE -
HEREARERBENENFTERE HERER
HEESIZRE -

A BIR
1. BEREHK
RBEHE AEERERBATRE
(MBEREHER AN R0 —ELRE
E(WM_EStMER]) BELREEE
B15H-S{BES -

REMNBEINWBZBEREH R (HE
D)RAEEREREHHRNERRER - H
RAKBERZEHRBE N HEHENERE
BEREBHR(EE) - AEEHMBEE
BERBHR(SBER)REREERZRR °

REBFAEBECRREE  ARECHE
WEBIE S| - WHREAIREFEA IE AT
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RBEHE BERBAERERD
38.0% ° AEERAZBL IEHHAE
R BEERA 2 PR IE TR -
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Scope of Emission Intensity Total Emission

GHG Emissions Emission Source (tCOg) (Emission/Employee) (In percentage)
HiyE BE aEyE

BEREHHEE BHKR (B-ELHEE) (HHE/E8) (REAME)

FY202021  FY201920  FY201819  FY202021  FY2019220  FY2018119  FY202021  FY201920  FY2018/19

Scope 1

HE1

Direct Emission Viehicles Fuel ! 4844 50.81 62.90 0.09 0.10 0.13 6.1% 3.9% 48%
Consumption

EEER SR

Scope 2

)

Indirect Emission Electricity T34.75 1,219.00 1,233.60 140 231 260 92.0% 94.6% 93.7%
BEEH EY

Scope 3

£

Other Indirect Emission ~ Paper Waste 15.28 18.23 19.49 003 0.03 0.04 1.90% 14% 1.5%
EfbEH BESE

Total 798.47 1,288.04 131599 152 244 21 100% 100% 100%
RE

Table 1 — Amount of GHG Emissions during the Reporting Period x| —REHBNEERENRS

1 To align with FY2020/21, the Group updated its calculation of tCO2e, intensity and emission percentage regarding emission from
vehicles fuel consumption in FY2019/20 and FY2018/19.
REFY202021RF—5 » REBEEHFY201920%FY2018/ 196 BB ERMBHHRENSH _SLRERE BERPER
BALLHEH -
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Air Emissions
Nitrogen oxides (“NOX"), sulphur oxides (“SOX") and
particulate matter (“PM”) are the common air pollutants
being generated during the Group’s business activities. Fuel
combustion of group-owned trucks was the major source of
air emissions.

Type of Air Emissions Emission Source

BERFENE
AEEEBTDEENEZRSREY —RE
Z2WTEELD]) REACWTHRE
ey D REFRF((HFHF ) - REE
BEEENREREDSBERERENERR
iR e

Emission? (kg)

BER B ER HE B ARR BEME2(RAF)
FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2018/19

SOX 0.28 0.30 0.37
mEty

Vehicles fuel
NOX tion 183.51 195.48 262.37
_— consump
agty

HEEERA
PM 3.99 4.25 25.39

Table 2 = Amount of Air Emissions during the Reporting Period

The Group continues to explore ways to further reduce its
emissions, for example:

e Encourage employees to use video or telephone
conferences to reduce unnecessary business travels; and

e Give preference to local suppliers, centralised
management of vehicle use.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with air and GHG emissions related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311) of Hong Kong.

Energy Consumpfion and Conservation

The Group recognises the scarcity of finite natural resources
and has therefore implemented policies to better govern
the effective use of resources. During the Reporting Period,
the Group replaced all targeted physical servers with virtual
servers, which has reduced considerable energy consumption.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to share
the responsibilities in the Group’s ESG strategy. Energy
conservation is mentioned in Staff Handbook. All employees
must implement the adopted measures and be responsible
for the Group’s overall energy efficiency. The Group will
regularly review the related policies to ensure they are in line
with the market practice.

2

®2 -~HREHENERFRE

NEBBESRE-SRHOERENS
& o flan

c BBEEEARGHEFSE B
TRAEMER : &

s FEREAXMBHER  STEEHER
I

RBEME - AEELTABMEMRER
BrERNBRERBHERNAERERERE
FBEETRREBEIEINE(ER
SRERURBD)

BEFHFER i
AEBEHARRERL 2 FB - At
CEREERRAEEFRMAGER - R
EHE  AREEESERARSETHE
BRBERARSE - KBRDERERE

i AEBREESESEAEENER
B HEREARBNERT - HHORER
ETFMPERE - 2RESMEBRR
EEERM B - UHAEEHEELER
MHEE - AEBEKERRIBEEE
BREAFEWHED -

The emission data for FY2019/20 and FY2018/19 have been restated due to a reporting error.
FY2019/208FY2018/1 9N BE A BB C R EHRMED -
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The Group has performed the following measures to promote
energy conservation:

e Turn off idle electrical appliances and equipment, lighting
and air conditioning when leaving the workplace;

e  Prefer using low-power electrical appliances or products
and avoid using unnecessary high-power equipment;

e Replace conventional lamps with LED lights gradually;
and

e Perform various sustainable procurement measures to
advocate green product awareness.

During the Reporting Period, total energy consumption
decreased by 5.5%. The Group considers such decrease was
due to the effect of local epidemic prevention measures
to the office and local retail stores, therefore decreased in
energy consumption. In addition, the Group believes existing
measures help reduce the use of resources.

REE T REUA T 1B e EERRE

o HFFAEMNERNRME - UREBRF
THEERERRARENA

s BEARAEEEERIER H BRE
REMBENSFERRE

o BIFLIEDEERERER R

o REZBAUBHERBEHER  REGKE
Em e

RIBEME - EREEEEBRED55% °
FEBRAZBODEHRLIERA T
EERAZA I RERAH - MEERE
REBEMREY - 5 - XEERAREHE
A ERER

Intensity (Consumption/Employee)
BECHER ES)
FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2018/19

Resources Unit Consumption
=0 B HEE

FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2018/19
Electricity kWh 1,985,796.00 2,101,404.00 2,233,571.77
Bh FRE
Water m?3 552.01 566.03 1,166.26
X TR
Fuel L 17,471.17 18,325.29 22,689.70

3,811.51 3,987.48 4,712.18
1.06 1.07 2.46
33.53 34.77 47.87

Table 3 — Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period
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Mifigation of Wasfte

The Group adheres to the principles of waste management
and strives to properly handle and dispose of hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste generated from business
activities. For instance, chemical waste is collected and
processed by licensed chemical waste collectors, while
other wastes such as photographic paper, paper, metal foil,
fluorescent tubes, photocopier cartridges and batteries, are
collected and processed by qualified waste recyclers.

The Group has put in place step-by-step instructions for
handling chemical waste. Photofinishing solution generated
from the retail photoshops are collected and handled
periodically by collectors approved by the Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong. The Group also
implemented clear guidelines on the temporary storage of
hazardous waste. Hazardous wastes are stored separately
from other general wastes to ensure safety and prevent
contamination or spillage.

In addition, the Group has implemented relevant measures
to handle non-hazardous waste generation from its business
operations and launched different reduction initiatives.
Concerning the established environmental policies, the
Group has implemented a waste management approach and
initiatives including but not limited to the following:

e Minimise the general use of office paper;

e Distribute, file and archive documents electronically to
reduce printing;

e Place recyclable products into the bins at the designated
recycling areas; and

e Set up collection boxes to recycle papers, box files,
plastic folders, aluminium cans, rechargeable batteries
and rechargers.

The Group has initiated the digitalization process to
developing system flows, e-forms and e-invoice. It is expected
that beginning from FY2021/22, the internal processes will
be gradually replaced by digitalization instead of physical
forms.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with waste disposal-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354) of Hong Kong.

RLEEY
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REREERBEBREHRELENEEE
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Type of Emission
Waste Source Amount of Waste (tonnes) Intensity (Emission/Employee)
BENER  HHRR FEREYE () ZE (BB ES)
FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2018/19 FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2018/19
Hazardous Photofinishing 62.60 89.79 123.66 0.12 0.17 0.25
waste Solution
BEEEY  HERE
Non-hazardous General 3.18 3.80 4.06 0.01 0.01 0.01
waste Operation
BEERY —REE
Total 65.78 93.59 127.72 0.13 0.18 0.26
4z

Table 4 — Amount of Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste Produced
during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the amount of hazardous
waste and non-hazardous generated decreased by 29.7%
from FY2019/20. The Group will continue to make an effort
to keep hazardous waste generation from its production
processes.

Reduction of Water Usage

Sustainable and responsible use of water resources is a global
issue. The Group is aware that water shortage, excessive
demand and overuse of water can cause serious problems.
Due to its business nature, the Group does not use or
discharge significant amount of water.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with water discharge-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358) of Hong Kong.

Compared to FY2019/20, water consumption has decreased
by 2.5%. The Group has been strengthening its water-saving
promotion by posting signage near water faucets to remind
employees to minimise the use of water.
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Use of Packaging Maferials

The Group promotes the minimum use of packaging
materials in all business activities. During the Reporting
Period, approximately 700 tonnes (FY2019/20: 850 tonnes)
of packaging materials were used, including carton box
(approximately 305 tonnes; FY2019/20: 610 tonnes), bubble
bag (approximately 380 tonnes; FY2019/20: 210 tonnes)
and plastic wrap (approximately 15 tonnes; FY2019/20: 30
tonnes).

The Group continued to reduce the use of packaging
materials. At shop level, staff will advise customers to
minimise the use of plastic bags while at logistic levels,
strings are used for delivery and pick-up instead of using
plastic bags.

The total amount of packaging materials used during
the Reporting Period reduced by 17.6% compared to
that of FY2019/20, signifying the Group’s effort in the
implementation of reduction and recycling measures.
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Chart 1 — Amount of Packaging Materials Used
during the Reporting Period

B -HmEMENaRIRE

Annual Report  2020/21 FE#&ERE 43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - &R ER/HE

44 China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT

The Environment and Nalural Resources

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any significant direct impact on the environment and
natural resources. The Group strives to fulfil its responsibility
to minimise the potential negative environmental impacts.
Since the Group is not directly involved in the raw material
extraction process, the Group places great emphasis on
ensuring the raw materials are responsibly sourced. In
achieving this, the Group adopts industry best practices and
regularly monitors its supply chain management practices.

Climate Change

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and has identified
typhoon as the major threat from the increasing climate
change. Given this, the Group has developed mitigation
measures to reduce the adverse impact caused by typhoons
on employees and properties, including but not limited to:

e  Prevent flooding nearby high-risk retail stores at the time
of rainstorm weather;

e Instruct employees to ensure all windows are closed at
their work place and conduct regular window inspection
before typhoon; and

e Purchase insurance to transfer possible losses caused by
natural disasters and reduce the risk of casualties and
property losses.
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SOCIAL

The Group strives to build a safe, healthy, fair, and non-
discriminative work environment and maintain a harmonious
relationship with employees, to bring together all employees to
promote the long-term sustainable development of the Group.

The Group's social policy adheres to the following principles:
1. Respect the Employee

All employees’ fundamental equality of dignity and rights is
to be respected so that they are treated justly and equitably.
Employees who demonstrate outstanding work initiatives are
identified and cultivated to reach their greatest potential.

2. Aspire to Perfection

Together with the delivery of the highest product quality to
customers, all employees are encouraged to provide their
best service in achieving excellence.

3. Serve the Community

Employees shall delight and satisfy every customer by
providing attentive service. The Group maintains a peaceful
and harmonious working atmosphere and advocates a
modest and humble lifestyle.

4. Contribute to the Society

All employees are encouraged to fulfil the obligations to
promote social prosperity through participating in social
welfare activities and comply with the law.

1. Employment and Labour Sfandards

The Group's continuous success relies on human resources.
Therefore, the Group is devoted to providing a quality
workplace for the employees. Apart from nurturing a safe,
supportive and collaborative working environment, the Group
also values the career development of employees and labour
rights protection. To achieve this, the Groups provides a
fair and safe work environment with equal opportunities to
staff and embracing diversity regardless of nationality, race,
religion, gender, age, physical abilities, pregnancy, or family
status.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly observes the
employment regulations, relevant policies and guidelines of
the relevant jurisdictions where it operates, including the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter
282 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Labour Rights and Welfares

The Group recognises the value of a diverse and skilled
workforce and is committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in which all can
thrive. The Group provides employees with various welfare
and benefits. Employees are entitled to a discretionary
performance bonus, mandatory provident fund, medical
welfare and hospital allowance, various types of paid leaves
(marriage, study and examination, compensation, paternity,
maternity, and funeral leaves) in addition to annual leave
and sick leave. Details are set out in the Staff Handbook
to ensure transparency of information on the employees’
responsibilities and rights. The Group’s essential policies and
procedures are also included in the Staff Handbook which
is in line with the internal management policy. This policy
is developed in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations related to labour standards.

On the other hand, the Group continually reforms and
improves its employee compensation policies and systems and
fully considers increasing employee compensation in tandem
with the Group’s performance, in an effort to ensure that
employees are rewarded fairly based on their contribution.
The Group endorses a comprehensive performance appraisal
system under which promotion opportunities and salary
adjustments are based on individual work performance. Based
on this equitable principle, the system successfully motivates
employees and promotes the realisation of self-value.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Employment of Children Regulations (Cap. 57, section 73) of
Hong Kong.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, there were 525
employees (FY2019/20: 527) in the Group's workforce. The
majority the Group's employees locate in Hong Kong with
around 80% are employed full-time, employment turnover
rate at Hong Kong was 28%?°.

There were no non-compliance cases noted concerning
labour standards laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.
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3 Employee turnover rate is calculated based on the employee departure during the Reporting Period, divided by the total number of
employees as at 31 March 2021.
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The employee compositions are illustrated as follows:
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Chart 2 — Location of Workforce at the end of the
Reporting Period
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Chart 3 — Employee Distribution by Gender at the end of
the Reporting Period
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Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
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Chart 6 — Employee Turnover Rate by Gender during
the Reporting Period
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Chart 7 — Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group
during the Reporting Period
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a safe
and healthy environment for all employees and customers.
The Group has established safety measures and procedures
recommended by the Labour Department and Occupational
Safety and Health Council.

The Group requires employees to strictly comply with
the safety policy and guidelines which specify workflows,
various safety measures and guidance as well as employees’
responsibilities for their health and safety at the workplace.
In the daily operations of the Group, the risk of work injury
mainly arises from manual handling operations. In order to
protect the safety and health of employees and to minimise
the risk involved, the Group advocates safe manual handling
operations through the provision of satisfactory working
conditions, good working practices, proper use of mechanical
aids and protective devices, adequate safety and health
information, and sufficient safety training.

During the Reporting Period, the Group found no case of
violation of laws and regulations related to occupational
safety and health, nor did it receive any complaints about
work conditions. Also, there were no work-related deaths
(FY2019/20 and FY2018/19: none) and there were 62.5 days
lost due to work injuries during the Reporting Period.

The Group strictly follows the relevant legislations in
Hong Kong including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Safety Officers and
Safety Supervisors) Regulations (Chapter 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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Response fo Covid-19

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has taken
prompt measures to safeguard its employees, customers and
business continuity. Apart from complying with the public
health measures of the HKSAR government, the Group has
also implemented the COVID-19 procedures.

To reduce the chance of cross-infection among employees
at workplace, all employees and guests were required to put
on surgical masks and conduct temperature checks before
entering the Group’s premises. The Group has also strictly
abided by social distancing through installing dividers in the
office.

Regular employees’ activities have been reduced and were
held only when necessary. Work-from-home and flexible
working hours arrangement have been offered to employees
during the peak of the pandemic. Conventional face-to-
face meetings were replaced by online meetings whenever
feasible. In addition, the Group has also distributed adequate
protective gear such as surgical masks, hand sanitisers
and alcohol wipes to employees in efforts to protect its
employees. To protect its employees and customers, staff
working in high-risk locations shall conduct COVID-19 testing
regularly and retail stores were regularly disinfected and
sanitised with antivirus coating sprays.
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5. Development and Training
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The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth and
future success. Therefore, the Group encourages employees
to participate in personal development and training.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided 658
hours of employee training (FY2019/20: 2,419 hours). Total
employee training hours decreased by 72.8% compared to
FY2019/20. This was mainly because of the adoption of social
distancing due to COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, internal
and external training courses were suspended. In addition,
the low on-board rate led to a decrease in employee on-
board training.

The following is an overview of the wide ranges of training
schemes.

e On-Board Training Scheme — This scheme enables new
hires to understand the history, mission, structure,
welfares policies, and corporate social responsibilities of
the Group.

e Training Scholarship Scheme — This scheme encourages
the employee to pursue continuing education and take
part in work-related training courses.

e Mandatory Training Scheme — This scheme aims at
enriching employees’ experience and broadening their
knowledge of industry intelligence. The Group will assign
the employees to participate in external seminars and
product launch activities if necessary.

e Operation and Job Skill Training Scheme — This scheme
is designed to provide employees with the skills and job
knowledge to meet the standard of the Group.
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Percentage of Employees
Trained by Employee Category
RESERESNZEIEETDL

1%
(15%0) 0%
(3%)

46%

(67%)

@ Senior Management

BREERE

Middle Management

hREEE

® Supervisor Level
EERE

® General Staff
—RE

53%
(15%)

(FY2019/20 figures Ei%)

Chart 8 — Percentage of Employees Trained by
Employee Category during the Reporting Period
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Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender
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Chart 9 — Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender
during the Reporting Period
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Chart 10 — Average Training Hours Completed by Gender
during the Reporting Period
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Categories during the Reporting Period
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Supply Chain Management

The Group emphasises promoting good communication
and cooperation to jointly maintain the quality and safety
of products and services. The Group implements supplier
management in accordance with internal guidelines. Based
on multiple aspects such as quality and price, environmental
protection, labour practices, suppliers are chosen to subject
to screening and evaluation procedures.

To ensure suppliers’ capability in quality assurance, safety and
environmental responsibility, the Group carries out regular
quality assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities. The
Group will sign agreements with key suppliers to regulate
their product quality, environmental and safety performance
if necessary. To further the Group’s dedication to supply
chain management, directed by the ESG Committee, the
Group will launch the Supplier's Code of Conduct which
aims at providing a comprehensive account of the selection
process of potential suppliers in the near future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has 570 (Mainland
China: 11, Hong Kong: 540, Others: 19) active suppliers®.
The Group was not aware of any key suppliers that had any
actions or practices which have a significant negative impact
on related ESG aspects.

Green Procurement

The Group has ethical and environmental expectations for
delivering goods and services. In FY2020/21, the Group
continues to engage with customers, partners and suppliers
to further its sustainability by focusing on managing risk
and improving performance in the supply chain, adopting
standards and best practices, and providing sustainable
design, manufacturing, product and packaging options.

During the Reporting Period, the ESG Committee issued the
green procurement guideline based on the Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong. The internal guideline
encompassed the Group’'s ESG strategy in green. For
instance, all procurement of A4 size paper has reduced to
75g. The Group is committed to considering fully adopt
decomposed plastic bags for future procurement.

Some of the ways the Group help customers source items
with sustainability attributes include:
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4 An active supplier is identified as its goods, materials, or services have a significant impact on the Group.
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Customers

Refills are available for some products in the skincare
segment. In order to avoid hazardous damage to the
environment, electronic waste from electronic products and
household appliances segment is delivered to recyclers for
further processing before disposal.

In photography and imaging solutions segment, the Group
provides QR code instead of the conventional CD to
customers. The QR code directs customers to download ID
photos online within one month of purchase.
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To protect the environment, Fotomax introduced QR code service — customers can download photos via QR code instead of
receiving a conventional CD.
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Partners

The Group works with FUJIFILM Japan, the Group’s suppliers
for photofinishing and processing equipment, cameras and
films, upholds environmental protection and focuses on the
chemical composition of the products.

Supply Chain

The Fotomax business only purchases paper from Forest
Stewardship Council (“FSC") certified suppliers. The Group
regards FSC as the gold standard in responsible forestry. FSC
is one of the most universally recognised certification systems
that prohibits the use of genetically modified trees, prevents
the conversion of natural forest to plantations and requires
a precautionary approach to the management of areas with
high conservation value.
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Green Building

In an effort to the Group's pursuit of green design and
installation services, the office building of the Group is
certified as green buildings under the independent third-
party rating system — Leadership in Energy and Environment
Design award granted by the U.S. Green Building Council.
The Group strongly believes in the importance of preserving
the environment and has therefore committed to developing
practices that conform to environmental protection.

Product Responsibility
Delivering Quality Products and Services

The Group is committed to maintaining and continuously
improving the quality of its product to not only maintain
competitiveness in the dynamic environment. The Group also
realises responsible and ethical operating practices, as well
as effective supply chain management, are essential to its
sustainable development. Thus, comprehensive product and
services quality reviews are conducted regularly to ensure the
consistency of the quality.

During the Reporting Period, the total number of complaints
about products and services has decreased to 23 (FY2019/20:
61). There was no recall of products for safety and health
reasons received during the Reporting Period.

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Import and Export Ordinance (Cap. 60) of Hong Kong.

The Group provides the best customer experience by
promoting Total Satisfaction Guarantee — Client may retake
photos, receive refund coupons, or return products within 10
days of purchase.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual properties and has formulated
related policies to protect intellectual property rights.
Employees are required to protect the Group’s intellectual
property such as trade secrets, patents, trademarks and
copyrights, as well as business, marketing and service plans,
engineering and manufacturing ideas, designs, databases and
records. Any unauthorised use or distribution of the Group’s
proprietary information would be subjected to disciplinary
actions.

In the photography and imaging solutions segment, only
photocopies that comply with copyright will be accepted.

Customer Data Protection

All employees are required to comply with the data
protection principles as stated in the Staff Handbook.
Information provided by the customers and suppliers is only
available to employees who have a legitimate need to access
it.

The Group continues to apply new data encryption on
websites to enhance the protection of customer’s data. The
new technology applied Secure Sockets Layer certificate on
the Group’s websites. As such, Transport Layer Security (“TLS")
encryption have been enabled to better protect data during
transmission. Besides, TLS encryption is also implemented to
ensure all network traffic running over a secured channel.

During the Reporting Period, there was no reported case
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
concerning product responsibility.

Anfti-Corruption

The Group values and upholds integrity, honesty and fairness
in how it conducts business and has zero tolerance for
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Group
sets out the relevant policies and guidelines the employees to
abide by the code of conduct. The code of conduct provides
a clear definition of the provision and acceptance of interests,
such as gifts and souvenirs, and ways to deal with conflicts
of interest. During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
anti-corruption training to the top management.

The Group established a whistle-blowing policy that ensures
any internal or external stakeholder can raise any issue.
Employees are encouraged to contact the internal audit team
directly at any time to seek guidance in sensitive situations
or to report suspicious case. The internal audit team will
investigate possible violations in any suspicious case.
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The Group abides by the relevant anti-corruption laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong Kong. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering that would have a
significant impact on the Group. During the Reporting Period,
there were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group has long supported various charity organisations
through sponsorships and product donations. Beneficiaries
including but not limited to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong, Zonta Club of HK Il Foundation Limited, Hong Kong
Photographic Culture Association Limited, and The Hong
Kong Management Association.

The top management of the Group also takes up the leading
role in many reputable charities. Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis,
Chairman of the Group who is also the Vice Patron of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong; Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley,
Deputy Chairman of the Company and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, is the board of director and executive
committee member of the Community Chest of Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed to the
following donations, sponsorship and participated in various
charity events.

Society
e The Community Chest — "BEA Charity Golf Day 2020"
e The Community Chest — “Donation”

e The Community Chest - “Greening for the Chest
2020/21"

e Zonta Club of HK Il Foundation Limited — “Charity Golf
Day”

e The Hong Kong Management Association — “HKMA/TVB
Awards for Marketing Excellence 2021"

e The Hong Kong Management Association — “HKMA 60th
Anniversary”

Art and Culture

e HK International Photo Festival — “Event and Future
development of HKIPF 2020"

The amount of sponsorships and in-kind donations made
during the Reporting Period was approximately HK$1.9
million.

10.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
Bk ETE R A EBE

During FY2020/21, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages risks
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

J Identification: Identify business objectives and risks that could
affect the achievement of objectives and ownership of such
risks.

. Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact(s) of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor of the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in FY2020/21, no significant
risk was identified.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group has in place an internal control system which is compatible
with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission) 2013 framework. The framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying, analyzing risks and forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed in order to achieve the Group’s
objectives.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to ensure that management directives to mitigate
risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o Access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

o Executive Directors are the only designated persons to speak
on behalf of the Group when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in FY2020/21, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Chartered
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operations and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

According to the established plan, reviews of risk management and
internal control systems are conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s review which include but not limited to
(i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment, and (ii) the scope and quality
of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems. During the year, the Board had specifically reviewed
the Group's risk management and internal control systems related to
social unrest and COVID-19.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate in FY2020/21.
Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs
and budget provided were sufficient.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEARHE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Report”) in the Group’s Annual Report for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

During the year, the Company has applied the principles set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, consisting of
three Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Executive Directors
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
(Chairman and Member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee) (re-designated as Non-executive Director
on 14 August 2020)

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen
(Member of Audit Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Ka Fai David
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Hui Allan
(Member of Audit Committee)

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
and Member of Audit Committee)

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis was re-designated from an Executive Director
to a Non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the
Company'’s annual general meeting held on 14 August 2020.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the Directors are set out and disclosed in the section
headed “Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-executive Directors’
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”
on pages 26 to 29 of the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March
2021.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the Group’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Dr.
Sun Tai Lun Dennis, Mr. Liu Hui Allan and Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan
shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company's Bye-laws. Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, Mr. Liu Hui Allan and
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Group; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Group's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors have carried out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Group. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating
the daily operation and management of the Group are delegated to
the management.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company purchases annually the Directors and officers’ liability
insurance for members of the Board and officers to provide protection
against claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the
Directors and officers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Group and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The record of continuous professional development relating to
Director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
summarized as follows:

Directors 2
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley BEsLEE
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BREEREE
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita REEZL
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BRmiEL
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen BIRREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Li Ka Fai David TRELE
Mr. Liu Hui Allan BnE e 4
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan BEFREL
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Note:
Types of Training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Board of Directors” on page 60.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, and all Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Li Ka Fai David (Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. Liu Hui Allan and Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (including one
Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the
Audit Committee include the following:

e To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them.

e To act as key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relation with the external auditors, and to be primarily responsible
for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditors, and to consider any questions of their
resignation or dismissal.

e To review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review the interim and annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment
of external auditors and relevant scope of works and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka
Fai David and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchanges’ website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the following:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy.

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and the senior
management.

e To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee
met once to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and the senior management and other related
matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka
Fai David and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary function of the
Nomination Committee include the following:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes.

e To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors.

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspective
of the Board is maintained.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 23 November
2018 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board
and is available on the website of the Company. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure
that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to
reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the nomination of
Directors, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all
levels and will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices
at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured
so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy on 23
November 2018 which sets out the selection criteria and process and
the Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. Saved as the disclosure in the section
headed “Changes in Directors’ Information” on pages 79 and 80 of
the Annual Report, there was no change in the composition of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this CG Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the table below:

EERZATRRHFIS

BEEHFEE2021F3A3TALFERTHNES
EREEZEEERURARARRASHHER
BEIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/GEETRE
Other
Annual General
Nomination Remuneration Audit General Meetings
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting (if any)
B=R HiplRR
Name of Director L EEZ® REZE® FHzEsge HEHZE" BEXE K8(W0H)
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley B E 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NA TEH
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BEREE 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NA TEH
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita REELZL 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NATER
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAfmEL 4/4 1 171 NATER 171 NATER
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen  JB#ZE4E 44 NATER  NATER 212 o1 NATER
Mr. Li Ka Fai David TREEE 414 1 il 212 171 NATER
Mr. Liu Hui Allan 2B %% 44  NATER  NATEAR 212 01 NATEH
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan BEFREL 4/4 il il 212 171 NAFRERA

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 87.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board regarding the
selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remunerations paid to the Group's external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2021 is HK$1,000,000 and HK$613,000 respectively.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and is responsible for
providing advice to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures are
followed. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

More details of the risk management and internal controls are
disclosed in the section “Risk Management and Internal Control” on
pages 57 and 58.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

Special general meetings may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders
may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2021. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Bye-laws is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meetings, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests at any time to the
following:

Address:  8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco
Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company

Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2409 0294
Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 23 November 2018
on payment of dividends. The Company intends to distribute 30-
70% of its annual net profit as dividends to its shareholders, subject
to the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and
any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’
approval.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing and printing
products and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances; and (ii)
the provision of technical services for photographic developing and
processing products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual
advisory and custom design and installation service. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

ANNUAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 162.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 1 HK cent
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2021 (FY2019/20: Nil),
payable on 8 September 2021 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company as at close of business
on 20 August 2021 subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a
fair review of the Group’s business as well as future development in
the Group's business can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14
to 25 of the Annual Report.

Certain financial KPIs which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the year ended 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group’s cash and bank balances were approximately HK$283 million
with a zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of approximately HK$46
million were recorded as at 31 March 2021, while inventories were
approximately HK$111 million.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 525 employees (As at 31 March
2020: 527), remunerated largely based on industry practice, including
provident funds, insurance and medical benefits. The Group also
adopted a discretionary bonus programme determined annually based
upon the performance of the Group and the employees.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2021 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment
properties are set out on page 163.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year ended 31 March 2021. Details of
the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 92, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$14,053,000,
of which approximately HK$11,853,000 has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account and capital redemption reserve account of HK$490,378,000
and HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group made charitable
contributions of approximately HK$247,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 10.5% and 3.4% of the
Group’s total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 81.6% and 25.9% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2021
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Ka Fai David

Mr. Liu Hui Allan

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 110, Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis, Mr. Liu Hui Allan and Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 26 to 29 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following Directors for their provision of management services to the
Group:

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Each service contract for each of the Executive Directors has a
remaining unexpired term of 2 years as at 31 March 2021 and is
subject to the termination by either party upon giving three months’
notice to the other party.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company’s Bye-laws request that all Directors and officers of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is arranged to cover all the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against them.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors on a named basis
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to market condition and performance of the Group and
individual staff (including the Director). The Remuneration Policy and
remuneration packages of the Directors and management team are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board which are
detailed in the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the CG Report on pages 63 and 64.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FAFEBERFE -

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERNHE - SORERMEE

Directly Percentage of the

beneficially Founder  Beneficiary Interest Company’s issued

Name of Director Note owned of a trust of a trust of spouse Total share capital

(RN

HiE 57 EBRITRAZ

EENE i = BRERE EEAIBRA ZEHA [iREREd st Bt

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) - (iii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 220,000 712,496,214 60.11%
BARfmEL

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
Bt et

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
BREBERAE

Mr. Fung Yue Chun (vi) - - 70,000,000 - 70,000,000 5.90%
Stephen
BWERE

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations:

HBEERR 3 R ZIFE :
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number of  nature of issued share
Name of Director corporation Company Shares shares held interest capital
1K IEEECEEE
BENE HEEEERE HEHALTER  RG BERHOHE HEEME BITRAZEDL
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Searich Group ~ Company’s Ordinary shares 25  Beneficiary 25%
Dennis Limited immediate (note (i) of a trust
BAfmiEL holding
company
ARRzEHE  EBERMEED) FEREZEA
RN E
—ditto— —ditto— Ordinary shares 75  Founder 75%
(note (ii)) of a trust
EL Eili R (ML i) ERERIBEA
100 100%
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 103,000,000  Founder 100%
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (i) of a trust
PN holding
company
RAFZEE HBERMEG)) EFERIMEA
EIRAF
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Note:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

EEEWmE

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of 11,242,000
shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation, which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned by Tricor
Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family
Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis and his family members. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the
issued share capital of Searich Group Limited.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214 shares
in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being the
founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital
of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group
Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interests of Fine
Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found
in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 220,000 shares of the
Company through the interests of his spouse, Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty who
inherited the said shares from her mother’s legacy in 2014.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to
be interested in a total of 11,242,000 shares in the Company directly
held by Dago Corporation, which is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and is owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in
its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary
trust established for the benefit of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his
family members including Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao
Hsi Ryan. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share capital
of Searich Group Limited.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to
be interested in a total of 700,034,214 shares in the Company held by
Fine Products Limited by virtue of them being beneficiaries of The Sun
Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Fine Products
Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited is
held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interests of Fine Products
Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found in
the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in 70,000,000
shares of the Company held by HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited by virtue of
him being a beneficiary of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited
act as trustee. Details of the interests of HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited in
the Company can be found in the section “Substantial Shareholders’
and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
of the Company and any of its associates had registered an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of
SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during
the financial year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, other than the interest of the Directors as
disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, the following interests
and short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EFMKmRREEZER
BREXTESRRORBERG 2 EERKXR |-
FiBEEN AU BREFEAYEESREAZH 28
BRRARFRLZERUVEBARNRBD 2RO R ERE
FMER 2 ER  HETETREMZEER - £
DF -~ REAZERATDAME L D TFET LEFR
FHEESHERBABBRBA R RREMEA
ERENRDNEEEMES o

FERRREMBAREGREMKRMGZER
R%E

R202153A318 - REXTEZRERH REERD
ZREBRAR |- EEEEREN - BREALQ
AIRBEESRBERGEBRREBFZRRER
MAE - THALHEARARDREERG 2

EERER

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more

of the voting power at any general meeting of the Company:

FRTEREHTEAATEARRAE L %A L RERZFTERRZFR !

Percentage of the

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Company’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share gg\it%l
NG
BEREER HE S RiERMEE BEZBREAR Bt EBTREAZBSE
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis gzileficial owner 1,000,000 0.08%
PN Bk
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000 (i) & (ii) 0.95%
SEZEA
Founder of a trust 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06%
fERERIA
Interest of spouse 220,000 0.02%
BB
712,496,214 60.11%
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06%
_of a controlled corporation
ERBEEARZELERER
Searich Group Limited iegfficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 50.62%
BEnES
Tricor Equity Trustee Limited Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 60.01%
b=
Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty Beneficial owner 220,000 0.02%
WERLL B
Interqs_tuof spouse 712,276,214 (i) & (iii) 60.09%
LB
712,496,214 60.11%
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
BRiESLEE St 2
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
BRERELE SAtEm A
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen Beneficiary of a trust 70,000,000 (v), (vii) 5.90%
BWERE EEZHEA & (viii)
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Long positions of other substantial shareholders:

HtX2RR2HA :

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
{HARAF]

REME ERE SR RERME BELBERERE MIEE BETRAZES L

Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BEMmTE FELEER

Fung Retailing Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BREEEEBRAT BREBA

Fung Holdings (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BERER(1937)BRAE] ZELERER

King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

KimERERA ZEEERER

HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited Trustee 70,000,000  (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

FEA

Note: =t

(i) 100,000,000 shares representing 8.44% of the Company’s shares (i) 5%100,000,000 R R (EAR AT ERITRH 2
in issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining 8.44%) M Fine Products Limited EL}E#EA © 4T
600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which Fine 2600,034,214%B& {2 i Searich Group Limited#
Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine Products & » MFine Products Limited BB Z A 7 C %
Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is {TBEANT75% ° Fine Products Limited & — B %
owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of BEZESHEMEILZAT » I HTricor Equity
The Sun Family Trust. Trustee LimitedAThe Sun Family TrustZFEA &4

R °

(ii) Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr. Sun Tai Lun (i) ZEREZCEEERAREBLI oERZZR -
Dennis.

(iii) Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214 (i) BERLITERAEBERBRAGE L ZEEM
shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr. Sun #E712,276, 214 A AT R 2 ©
Tai Lun Dennis.

(iv) Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to be  (iv) BELAEERBERLEEREHL T BThe Sun
interested in a total of 711,276,214 shares in the Company by virtue Family Trust&The Dennis Family TrustzZ 3 A
of being beneficiaries of The Sun Family Trust and The Dennis Family RBEEEHT11,276214BA R TR 2 o
Trust.

(v) Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in a total of (v) BWEREREELE A —EAHSBC Trustee (C.I)
70,000,000 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary LimitedEEZRANGREZZEARBERAEES
of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited act as trustee. $£70,000,000 R A R RR1D 2 #Ezs

(vi) The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of  (vi) BEMEECZERDER —RIZELEMIF

(vii)
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controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William).

The interests of HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited).

(vii)

E ERTEEEERAT  BKER(1937)
BRAAREHERERA A (HSERTEES
50%) °

HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited Z &= J3E B — R 5l
TEREZEMEFE  DEKZEEERRLQA
BERER(1937)ERATDAREHIZEBRER AT
(FAHSBC Trustee (C.1.) Limited#EH50%) °



(viii) The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William and HSBC Trustee (C.I.)
Limited as mentioned in the above notes (vi) and (vii) refer to the same
block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Changes in information of Directors which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

1. Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis was re-designated from an Executive
Director to a Non-executive Director with effect from the
conclusion of the Company’s annual general meeting held on
14 August 2020. Pursuant to the appointment letter entered
into between the Company and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 14 August 2020
for a term of three years, Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is entitled
to receive a director’'s fee per annum which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, duties and
responsibilities with the Company.

2. Pursuant to the service contract entered into between the
Company and Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a term of
three years, Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley is entitled to receive
an annual emolument per annum which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, duties and
responsibilities with the Company.

3. Pursuant to the service contract entered into between the
Company and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan as an Executive Director
of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a term of three years, Mr.
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan is entitled to receive an annual emolument
per annum which is determined by the Board with reference to
his experience, duties and responsibilities with the Company.

4. Pursuant to the service contract entered into between the
Company and Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a term of three
years, Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita is entitled to receive an annual
emolument per annum which is determined by the Board with
reference to her experience, duties and responsibilities with
the Company.

5. Pursuant to the appointment letter entered into between the
Company and Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a term of three
years, Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is entitled to receive a
director’s fee per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to his experience, duties and responsibilities
with the Company.

(viii) b 3B (vi) B2 (vii) BT 38085 Bl 4 S5 4E R HSBC Trustee
(C.1) Limited 2 22 15 E — HEA A R RAD ©
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Report of the Directors EEERE

6. Pursuant to the appointment letter entered into between the
Company and Mr. Li Ka Fai David as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a
term of three years, Mr. Li Ka Fai David is entitled to receive
a director’s fee per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to his experience, duties and responsibilities
with the Company.

7. Pursuant to the appointment letter entered into between
the Company and Mr. Liu Hui Allan as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for a
term of three years, Mr. Liu Hui Allan is entitled to receive a
director’s fee per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to his experience, duties and responsibilities
with the Company.

8. Pursuant to the appointment letter entered into between the
Company and Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2020 for
a term of three years, Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan is entitled
to receive a director’s fee per annum which is determined
by the Board with reference to his experience, duties and
responsibilities with the Company.

9. Mr. Li Ka Fai David retired as an independent non-executive
director and ceased to be the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of a
nomination committee of CR Construction Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
1582), with effect from the conclusion of the company’s
annual general meeting held on 25 June 2021.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are included in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review and up to
the date of this report, there is no other change in information of
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 June 2021

6. REALTEADNDNBLIRITESTRE
FHER2020F 481 BT Y BH=ZFNERE
Ko EREELEEESFRNESHES
WEDHEFTSLSEHEZLER  HEAQT
ZBEREAMEE -

7. READRAEARRB LY TESLE
FEN202054 81 BRIV A= NERE
B BEEEERSFUNESHES  #
ENHESELSEW LR - HADAZ
BEREEMEE -

8. BERXQCARRQAABILIATESE
FRRBLR2020F48 18T A=
FHERER EFREBELEESFRER
EEZHE WEHEETELSERZ
KE C-HAQAAZHERSAMEE °

9. ERELLECEITELEREEEERE
RAR(—BERBIALEHmZz2RAKM
RoR:1582)) BUFHTES  XFEB
EXEBERZESERFHMZEEEEEU
RIRBEZEEGRE > B2021F6AH25H
BITZHZATRRBEASEREBEN °

BEEHWFITRNRS WHEIRRMFE3S -

REXFFEEN REBEFEREZEAHREAR
B SEEMRE EHRAEI3SIBINVRATRSE
HWESEREE o

B BED
BE2021F3A31HEFEZHFEVBRRELH
RBMEIRKEETMEBMER

BORKESMEBRMENERRRBAFAER
£ XEERBBESIESEE -

RERESE

fEPN ]
FE

B5E
2021%6825H

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B S

e
pwec

To the Shareholders of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 88 to 162 which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2021;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B iz &Mk

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

e Provision for inventories
e Valuation of investment properties

e Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of retail stores

Key Audit Matters

Provision for inventories

Refer to Note 2.12, 4(i), 18 fo the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held inventories of HK$111,140,000.
A reversal of provision for inventories of HK$4,188,000 was credited
to the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March
2021. As described in the accounting policy in Note 2.12 to the
consolidated financial statements, inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The Group's inventories are subject to changing consumer
demands and market trends, increasing the level of judgment
involved in estimating provision for inventories.

We focused on this area because of magnitude of the inventories
and judgment is required to assess the appropriate level of
provisioning for items which may be ultimately written off or
sold below cost as a result of a reduction in consumer demand
particularly in light of the current volatile retail market situation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate the provision
for inventories:

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of provision for inventories
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

— Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s inventory
provisioning policy with respect to the inventories by category
based on aging together with the historical sales records
which reflected the expected life cycle of similar products;

— Compared the net realisable value of the inventories held
at year end, on a sample basis, to latest selling prices by
examining the sales invoices; where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective inventories after the balance sheet
date, we challenged management as to the realisable value of
the inventories, corroborating explanations with the aging and
marketability of the respective inventories as appropriate; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Provision for inventories (Continved)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter /[Continved)

— Tested the accuracy of aging profile of inventories used in the
inventory provision and recalculated the inventory provision as
at year end based on the Group’s provisioning policy.

Based on the procedures performed, we consider management's
judgment and estimates in the assessment of provision for
inventories, to be supported by the available evidence.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer fo Note 2.8, 4(iii) and 14 fo the consolidated financial
statements

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be HK$245,507,000 at 31 March 2021,
with a revaluation gain for the year ended 31 March 2021
recorded in the consolidated income statement of HK$19,381,000.
Valuations by an independent external valuer were obtained in
order to support management’s estimates. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
judgment, such as adjusted unit prices.

We focused on this area due to the significant amount of
revaluation gain recorded for the year and the significant
management judgment used to evaluate the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s valuations of investment properties:

— Evaluated the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— Discussed with the external valuer for the valuation
methodology and challenged the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuations;

— Checked to the adopted market unit prices by making
reference to external market data; and

— Used our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by the
external valuer and the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted for the valuations based on our knowledge of the
local property market.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the methodologies
used in preparing the valuations were appropriate and the key
assumptions were supported by evidence obtained.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B iz &Mk

KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores

Refer to Note 4(iv), 13 and 15 fo the consolidated financial
statements

The Group had HK$33,664,000 and HK$93,270,000 of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively as at
31 March 2021, of which approximately HK$70,262,000 was
attributable to its retail stores. The carrying amount of the retail
store assets is written down to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Management regards each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their financial
performance for the existence of impairment indicators, such as
trading performance is below expectation or store is loss making.

Management carried out an impairment assessment for the retail
store assets which has an impairment indicator (referred to as
“underperforming retail stores”) and as a result an impairment
loss of HK$3,008,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year. The recoverable amount of the
assets of underperforming retail stores is determined by value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections based
on the financial forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease.

We focused on this area because significant estimation and
judgment were involved in deciding whether a retail store has an
impairment indicator and in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant retail store assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate management’s
assessment process for identifying underperforming retail stores:

- Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process in identifying the indicators
of potential impairment and estimating the recoverable
amount of retail stores, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

— Challenged the judgments made in the identification of
impairment indicators; and

— Compared current year's performance of retail stores with
impairment indicators to the store prior year’s performance.

We tested the impairment calculation by performing the following
procedures:

— Compared the forecasted sales performance to the approved
business plan, and compared estimated running costs to the
historical records;

FRFEFERE)

MEEtER(E)

CELHAME BERRBLUREREEEZHAE
iE

FS IR EM (V) ~ 13K 15

EEEN2021FE3A31BZ2YE BERRE
URERAEEED R A B¥33,664000T R &
#93,270,000t c HAZEEHELH N EY
70,262,0007¢ ° fZEEHEEMNRMERAEME
AANEEE  AZEENREEMRZEETKRE
SH -

EREERRERNSEEHAB YR REELE
U WERTEEFHNIBERE  BEETHER
BEFR - MRFRBERARSEHELSE -

EEBHHERENEINTEEHEE (BAIRR
TMEWNTEEH DETRERE > ML FRESRE
W FkPERRREREBNE3,008,000T c REFR
ENSEEHEENTRESENRESEEE
ZREHTHBNMEELN  KABRRBESRERE
BIFTsTE R EREBEMEE ©

BMEERLER - THARRESZEEHETHR
HEFSREEHRTEEREEN T WESEE
HREARME R HE

BEMmEFAMAEERREFLER

RMZEBHTUTREFUFEERBERBIRET

ENTE R NTERRE

- THEEERBETRETFRRMEAZEET
WEEENAIMEEIZRTHBRE - WEBER
fhEt T HEEMRE R B M E A R E K (0
B TEM 2RI EEERREAUFF
HERE)  SMEEAHERRANEARER ;

- HREBRRENRREERHNHEREERSE &

- HEHRREFSNZEEREAFHRRE
EFNERRE ©

EMEBUTRFHRETEETAE

- HEFERMERREQEMNERTE - Rit
BLTTEER AR E L RO

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets of retail stores /Continved)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter /Continued)
Challenged management in relation to key assumptions
in their business plan and evaluated the key assumptions
(such as sales growth rate and running costs) applied by
comparing them to historical information and external market
information and conditions;

— Involved our in-house valuation expert to assess the
reasonableness of discount rates adopted by management;
and

—  Recomputed the impairment loss calculation.

Based on our work performed, we found the impairment of retail
store assets made by management to be supported by available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine it is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

. 2
e
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE2021F3A31BLEFE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 BT T BT T
Revenue [ 6 916,750 880,298
Cost of sales SHERA 7 (722,546) (685,266)
Gross profit EF 194,204 195,032
Other income and gains HA A K s 6 45,729 22,559
Changes in fair value of investment REVELNTFEEZY
properties 14 19,381 (3,587)
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 7 (128,503) (141,633)
Advertising and marketing expenses BERTIGHEERY 7 (12,643) (13,163)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (77,835) (83,696)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ¥ BERREBEUREA
equipment and right-of-use assets BEEZRERSE 13, 15 (3,008) (8,187)
Operating profit/(loss) LERE(E8E) 37,325 (32,675)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEF M (2,853) (3,379)
Share of results of an associate P — R E AR EE = =
Profit/(loss) before income tax MREFSBLATAIE, (B58) 34,472 (36,054)
Income tax (expense)/credit SR (BX) K& 10 (2,524) 4,335
Profit/(loss) for the year REEFB(ER) 31,948 (31,719)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: B/ (BB BB
Owners of the Company AATHEBA 33,635 (29,093)
Non-controlling interests ElEzn il £ (1,687) (2,626)
31,948 (31,719)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to REERQRBREE AESL
owners of the Company for the year BRER(FE) "
Basic HK 2.84 HK cents #&flll (2.45 HK cents 7&1)
Diluted e 2.84 HK cents #&{li (2.45 HK cents 7&fl)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LA WS R MM E—REIRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FETHEHWER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE202153A31HILFE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Profit/(loss) for the year REEFE,(EE) 31,948 (31,719)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HihZEWA(F1E):
/tem that may be reclassified subsequently HEEEH N EE R ZHA
fo profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of BREBGNEKELZLE
foreign operations 3,307 (2,565)
/tem that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss  FEE#H THEEE=ZHEH
Gains on revaluation of property MEB KRS - 2,859
/tem that has been reclassified to profit or loss EEFrEZEm2HE
Realisation of accumulated exchange differences upon R —FREKI B2 BB R EIE
liquidation of a subsidiary R ERER - 92
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEBA 3,307 386
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year AEEZERA(FHE)LHE 35,255 (31,333)
Attributable to: EEN
Owners of the Company ViN/NGTEZ 2= N 36,942 (28,707)
Non-controlling interests FEIEH R RS (1,687) (2,626)
35,255 (31,333)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  pifisma2EEREEBHHE —FARHE o
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R
As at 31 March 2021
7A2021F3H31H

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEE BT T BET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERRZE 13 33,664 38,582
Investment properties REME 14 245,507 225,436
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 93,270 101,507
Deposits BE 21 12,267 12,354
Deferred tax assets EERIEBEEE 26 118 174
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 384,826 378,053
Current assets REEE
Inventories =FE 18 111,140 169,508
Contract assets BREE 19 4,854 2,035
Trade receivables g 5 ERERE 20 45,830 43,675
Amount due from an associate e — B & A R FIE 17 - =
Prepayments, deposits and BARE - ZER
other receivables Hih Y BR1E 21 41,131 32,545
Tax recoverable Gk 302 232
Cash and bank balances WERRITHER 22 282,663 197,314
Total current assets REBEEARE 485,920 445,309
Total assets EEAE 870,746 823,362
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of the AARBEE AEERER
Company
Share capital &N 27 118,532 118,532
Reserves s 28 525,483 488,541
644,015 607,073
Non-controlling interests e B RS (229) 1,458
Total equity R 643,786 608,531

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mElBIRRE (&)

As at 31 March 2021
72021438311

2021 2020

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

FiEE BT T BET T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Accrued liabilities Estas 25 2,792 5,778
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 30,921 34,191
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE 26 29,595 27,413
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELRE 63,308 67,382
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and bills payables BEZRNRERERE 24 53,454 44,511
Contract liabilities EHEE 23 20,101 11,972
Accrued liabilities and other payables EEtaEREMtEMERE 25 44,045 40,040
Lease liabilities HEas 15 38,116 43,329
Tax payable FEIBiIE 7,936 7,597
Total current liabilities BB ELE 163,652 147,449
Total liabilities EEHAE 226,960 214,831
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 870,746 823,362
Net current assets RBEERE 322,268 297,860
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERRDEE 707,094 675,913

The financial statements on pages 88 to 162 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 25 June 2021 and were signed on its
behalf.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

B

£

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

TENEE 162 BN M HH/KREN20215F6 825
ARSESSHE  URBHTIEBSARES -

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO
E3=EIN

BIEERITHEAEE

LHERE BBMR R EEREH M E—RME -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREBBE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE2021F3A831HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAREAEE
Retained
Share Capital Eichange Asset  eamings/ Non-
Share premium redemption fluctuation revaluation  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account’ Tesere’ resenve’ Tesere’ Josses)' Total nferests — equity
RERd/
ke RIEEE EREEGR EXABER  EEEGER  (ZHEE) BE SBNtES  BRAE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
SO i BB BT BT ESfr BdTn BT B
Balance as at 1 April 2019 H019ELR 1B LR 118532 490,378 1619 112 538 (1257) 635,780 1704 637,484
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - 909 (2909) (2626 (1719
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: AH2E(5R)/MA
Bxchange diffrences on transaion of BERNFHENZE
foreign operations - - - (2,565) - - 256 - (2569
(Gains on revaluaton of property VEEI G - - - - 2859 -8 -8
Realsation of accumulated exchange diffeences upon ~ -FIKBAAEERER
liuidation of & subsidiary SHEYER - - - 9 - - 9 - 9
Total comprehensive (los)fincome 2(5E)/ HALE - - - Q473 289 909 (s (ew (13N
Total transactions with owners of the Company, ~ EAATEEAETHRS
recognised directly in equity: BE ERRESED.
Establishment of & new subsidiary Ru-BHNELA - 5 = = = = = 280 130
Balances as at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 H020£3831BR
AN0EIR1RLR 118,532 490378 1619 (1352) 28,246 (30,350) 607,013 1458 608,531
Profitfoss) fo the year KEEHR/ (58 = - - - - B 36 (1687) 31948
Other comprehensive income: Af2ERA:
Bxchange differences on tansltion of BEB)SHENZE
foreign operations = = = 3307 - - 33 - 33!
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EHA/ (BR)EE - - - 3307 - BES 64 (1687) 35255
Balance at 31 March 201 02153831 B 118,532 490,378 1619 1,955 28,246 3285 644015 (229) 643,786

' These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$525,483,000 (2020: HK$488,541,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Tk E

BERESVBEHRR

BR
k2 A f#% 1 B ¥ 525483000 T
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NT Eﬁﬁ/ﬂbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE2021F3831BLEFE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
{iE BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBRZBHERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRPTER AR, (B5i8) 34,472 (36,054)
Adjustments for: BT HIFRE
Interest income B WA 6 (1,359) (1,922)
Finance cost BE AR 2,853 3,379
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥J3¥ ~ BMERREZITE 7 15,520 15,598
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 7 45,337 55,661
Losses on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BRERREZ
equipment 18 7 7 236
Provision for other receivables HAb e AR IE S 280 =
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FE(BERR) BE
inventories 7 (4,188) 2,627
Impairment losses on financial assets SREEREEE 3.1(ii)(b) 370 =
Changes in fair value of investment REMEATEEZS
properties 14 (19,381) 3,587
Impairment loss on property, plant and ¥ -  BERREUR
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEEZRERSE 3,008 8,187
Rent concessions from lessors HEAESER 6, 35 (2,702) (1,795)
74,217 49,504
Changes in working capital BEESEH
Decrease in inventories FEZRD 62,556 26,414
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets SREE2 M) HL (2,819) 5,450
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B ZREWERE 2 (3Em),
A (2,472) 7,999
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments & ENREREMER
and other receivables BRIE > (3ghn), EA (8,782) 16,219
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables EZENKRERZEEZ
imjj[]/(,ﬁﬁ’l‘ 8,943 (37,780)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities EHE/EZEM CHD) 8,129 (3,202)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and M*TEF&EHJE’HEEIEZ
other payables #m, G 901 (7,946)
Cash generated from operations REEBMBZRS 140,673 56,658
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEBFEHEN 18 943
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 EBREH (234) (407)
Overseas taxes paid EABIEIR (226) (232)
Net cash generated from operating activities — &L&E¥KFE RS FEE 140,231 56,962
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBZESRD
Interest received 2FE 1,359 1,922
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYE BERRE 13, 35 (10,248) (5,989)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEYW% - BMEKRRE
equipment P8 sIE 5 6
Increase/(decrease) in non-pledged time REHABB=EAZ
deposits with original maturity of over three EIRHERFERZ
months (3m),m 22 (2,376) 2,690
Net cash used in investing activities REZDIMAZREFRE (11,260) (1,371)
Cash flows from financing activities REIZBZRESRE
Interest elements of lease payments HEREBEZREHXD (2,853) (3,379)
Principle elements of lease payments HERBEZETERD 35 (45,693) (50,935)
Proceeds from capital injection from FEFUERIANES
non-controlling interests Fr8RIE - 2,254
Net cash used in financing activities RESEETA 2R e T (48,546) (52,060)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B&REESZEER 2N
FEE 80,425 3,531
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#RERRESEEEH 174,388 172,562
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and ReRRELEEERZ
cash equivalents B MUk (B518) 624 (1,705)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FHRASTRREEMEER 22 255,437 174,388

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FRGERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

94

GENERAL INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248
Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of
photographic developing, processing and printing products
and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances; and (ii)
the provision of technical services for photographic developing
and processing products, imaging solution, professional audio-
visual advisory and custom design and installation services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Searich Group Limited and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited. Both of the holding companies are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The Company has its primary listing
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements to the extent they have not already been disclosed
in the other notes. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCO") Cap. 622.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES /Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation /Confinuved)
Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the
revaluation of investment properties, which are measured
at fair value.

(a)

(6)

Amended standards and revised conceptual
framework adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
and revised conceptual framework which are
mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 April
2020 and are relevant to its operations.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Definition of a Business
Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

The amendments and conceptual framework listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and amendments fo existing
standards, annual improvements, guideline
and interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

Effective for annual

periods beginning on
or after
HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Amendmens to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contrioution of Assets between To be announced
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classfication of Liabliies as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
before intended use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of 1 January 2022
Fulfling a Contract
Amendmens to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16
Annual Improvements Annual Impravements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018-2020 Cycle
Accounting Guideling 5 (Revised)  Merger Accounting for Common Control 1 January 2022
Combinations
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Finandial Statements - 1 January 2023

Classfication by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of the above new and amended
standards, annual improvements, guideline and
interpretation and does not expect that they would
have any significant impact to its results of operation
and financial position. The Group will apply the
above new standards and amendments when they
become effective.

2 FEEHBREEE)

2.1 RRBEHEE)
BhEkiRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

()

(if)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2 FEEHBREEE)

22 FERARESEEE

0]

(i)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHHREEE)
POLICIES /Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
[(Confinved)
(iii) Equity method (i) WRiE

22 FEFARESEEE(F)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy described in Note 2.9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
[(Confinved)
(iv) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHHREEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.3 Business combinations 23 EBaH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred;

(ii) liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

(iii) equity interests issued by the Group;

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
(i) consideration transferred;

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)

23

24

2.5

Business combinations /Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation

()

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HKS$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains or losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement on a net basis
within “Administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Except for investment properties,
translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all of the
Group’s entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2 FESBREERE)

2.6 ShEE

0]

(if)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation /Conrinuved)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment,
the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 5%

Furniture, fixtures and leasehold 20% to 33 1/3%
improvements

Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “Selling and distribution costs” and
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment /Confinved)
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are credited to other comprehensive income.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement within “Changes in fair
value of investment properties”.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” (Note 2.7).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets /Continved)
(ii) Recognition and derecognition

2 FESBREERE)

210 RERAMSREE(H)
(i) WERRR#RILHEGE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in “Other income and gains” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest method.

e  Fair value through profit or loss: Derivatives and
other debt instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of balance sheet date.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
and debt instruments that does not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately
in profit or loss and and presented net in the
consolidated income statement within “Other
income and gains” in the year in which it arises.

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets /Continved)
(iii) Measurement /Confinved)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised as “Other
income and gains” in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Impairment
losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
For the other financial assets, expected credit losses
are assessed according to change in credit quality
since initial recognition.

R UIERARME

2 FEEHBREEE)

210 RRREMEMEE(F)

(iii)

(iv)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

2 FESBREERE)

211 EHEMT R

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

212
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realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items AR o AR INEE S EZS BEZEAFE
of inventory on the basis of weighted-average method. BR - BEGEMNRARMRENRITI

Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
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at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 20 BRARKEREBRNER  F2H
See Note 20 for further information about the Group’s 3.1 0
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.
2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 214 ReRBSSEER
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated RREGERERERENMS » REeRR

statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B iR R KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.16 Trade, bills and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured.
Trade, bills and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within twelve months after
the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHHREEE)
POLICIES /Continued)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax /Confinved)
(ii) Deferred income tax /Confinved)

217 BMHIREEEFR SR (F)
(i) EEFRSIR(E)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits /[Continved)

(if)

(iif)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. Consideration is given to expected
future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the “ORSO scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for all
of its employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the schemes. The assets of both schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The Group's
employer contributions to both schemes vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
schemes, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions to the ORSO scheme, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the ORSO scheme.

R UIERARME

2 FEEHBREEE)
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(i)

(iii)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHHREEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.19 Provisions 219 #BE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

(i) Sales of goods

The Group engages in the wholesales and retail of
photographic developing, processing and printing
products, photographic merchandises, consumer
electronic products and household appliances and
skincare products. These products are sold on
their own in separately identified contracts with
customers.

The Group's contracts with customers for the sale
of products generally include one performance
obligation. Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products. As receivable is recognised
when the goods are delivered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition /Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of goods - customer loyalty programmes
The Group operates loyalty points programmes,
which allow customers to accumulate points when
they purchase products. The points can be redeemed
for free products, subject to a minimum number of
points obtained. A contract liability for the award
points is recognised at the time of sale. Other
income is recognised when the points are redeemed
or expired.

Rendering of services - provision of technical
services for photographic developing and
processing products and imaging solution
Revenue from the provision of the above services is
recognised over time when the services have been
rendered.

Rendering of services — provision of professional
audio-visual advisory and custom design and
installation services

The Group provides installation services. These
services are sold in bundle together with the sale of
audio visual equipment to customers. The installation
services can be obtained from other providers and do
not significantly customise or modify the products.
The revenue from the sales of audio visual equipment
is recognised at a point in time upon delivery of
the product, and revenue from installation service is
recognised over time when the services have been
rendered.

Financing component

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESHHREEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.21 Earnings per share 221 SEEF

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account: the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.22 Leases

The Group as a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
222 Leases /Confinved)

The Group as a lessee /Confinved)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take
effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;
e any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
222 Leases /Confinved)

2 FESBREERE)

222 AE(E)

The Group as a lessee /Confinved)

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties
and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

The Group applies the practical expedient from assessing
whether a rent concession related to Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19") is a lease modification. The Group
recognised the rent concessions related to COVID-19
amounted to approximately HK$2,702,000 in profit or
loss.

The Group as lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 14). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES /Continued)
2.26 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains right to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to provide
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations give rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if
the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the
contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities
if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(i) Market risk
[a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular review and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2021, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1% (2020: 1%) against RMB
with all other variables held constant, profit for
the year would have been HK$171,000 higher/
lower (2020: loss for the year would have been
HK$155,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated cash and bank balances
deposited with the banks in Hong Kong.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies are less sensitive to movement
in exchange rates as the amounts are not
significant to the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(i) Market risk /Continued)

(b) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to
the interest income received on the Group's
bank balances. The Group’s interest-generating
assets are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB
and United States dollars. The Group manages
its interest rate risk by regularly monitoring the
macro economic factors that may impact on the
interest rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% (2020:
0.5%) higher/lower while all other variables are
held constant, the profit for the year would
increase/decrease (2020: loss for the year would
decrease/increase) and total equity would
increase/decrease (2020: increase/decrease) by
HK$676,000 (2020: HK$449,000) due to an
increase/decrease in interest income.

(ii) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Details of the Group’s credit policy
are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise trade receivables, contract
assets, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
amount due from an associate, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

[(a) Risk management

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with financial institution that
meet the established credit rating of A. Given
these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in
Hong Kong is monitored closely by management
of the Group who will assess the reputation,
the risk of recoverability and the financial
information, if any, of the counter parties before
placing of deposits. Since the Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral.

3 MEBRARERE)
3.1 HBRBRERE)
(i) miEmE(E)
(b) % i FZE

REEFFEE 2 TSN REEE
B EE AR BIR 1T 45 BR P URER
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o A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)

(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)
(b) Impairment of financial assefs

Hﬂ%#ﬁi’% Bﬁnf

The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e Trade receivables;
e  (Contract assets;

e Deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments); and

e Amount due from an associate.

While cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and confract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and
have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The expected credit losses on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience
and the debtors’ credit history with the Group
and aging profile as at the end of reporting
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the Gross Domestic Product
and the unemployment rate of the regions/
countries in which it sells its goods and services
to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

3 MERREERE)
3.1 HBERBRERE)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Confinued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Conftinued)

As at 31 March 2021, the loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets were
determined as follows, the expected credit

3 MEBRARERE)
3.1 HBRBRERE)
(i) EERE(E)
(b) £HEERE(E)

EZRUIREARENEE (&)

M2021E38318 » EZEWER
BREHNEENSEREEEN
T UTHEBEESEREHA

losses below also incorporated forward looking RIEMER -
information.
Within 3 4106 7t0 12 Over
Current months months months 1 year Total
7B MEAMAR  4ZeA  7E12(8A 1)L %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  B%Tr  B%Tr  BYETr BT BE¥Tn
31 March 2021 2021F3H31H
Weighted average expected IIEPITEHEIER
loss rate 0.06% 1.2% 1.5% 2.1% 82.1%
Gross carrying amount - fREAE - B ZEK
trade receivables and RERANEE
contract assets 38,701 8,120 3,814 195 224 51,054
Loss allowances EERE 25 99 58 4 184 370

As at 31 March 2020, given the track record of
regular repayment of receivables and no history
of material default from the customers, the
Directors were of the opinion that the risk of
default by these customers was not significant.
Therefore, the expected credit losses of contract
assets and trade receivables were assessed to
be insignificant. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 reconcile to the opening

R202053H31H - EREFB
AR EUWORIEE M EE RS R
BERERLH  BESERAZ
EXFNEXEABYTEKX -
It EHNEERE S BUEREN
BHEEHBRETEATERK -
REBIBHZEERTHEM
ERmREMRAEERERE

FA2021FE K 2020E3831BEME
ZEWREBEEEBRERFIER

loss allowances as follows: BEHRNT ¢
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At the beginning of year RED = -
Recognition of loss allowances for FARRERERNE S EWEIRE
impairment of trade receivables WERRESERE
recognised in profit or loss during
the year 370 -
At the end of year RER 370 -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Conftinved)

3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)

(b) Impairment of financial assefs (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
[(Conftinved)

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
contract assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost
and amount due from an associate

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.

The credit quality of deposits and other
receivables excluding prepayment and amount
due from an associate have been assessed
with reference to historical information about
the counterparties default rates and financial
position of the counterparties.

The Directors are of opinion that the credit
risk of the amount due from an associate
had become high. Provision for impairment
of HK$32,720,000 was recognised as at 31
March 2020 and 2021. See Note 17 for further
information about the expected credit losses
provision.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
certain deposits and other receivables. These
financial assets are considered to be low credit
risk primarily because historically they had no
history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the 12-month expected credit
losses for these receivables are not material, and
thus no impairment losses were provided for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, except
for receivables from tenants of HK$280,000
which was individually impaired during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

3 MEBRARERE)
3.1 HERBEER(E)
(i) SEmREE)
(b) EHEERE(E)

EZRUIREARENEE (&)
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BHEE17 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)

(iii) Liquidity risk
The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing
policy and strives to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

3 MEBRARERE)
3.1 HBRBRERE)

(iii) REELRE
REBKFEFSBREZBEBCR -
THHBREEZ TV 2REREE
AR BURERBELER -

FEERFRBANFEPR AL ZE
BEEIHMERNT

Ondemand  Between 1 year to  Between 2 years to

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

or within 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
HEXEE
AOME 1EE)EH 1E255R fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
31 March 2021 2021%3031R
Trade and bills payables EAENREREE 53,454 - - 53,454
Accrued liabilties and other payables excluding non- ~ Est&ER EAEMEE
financial liabilties (FERBERND) 30977 - - 30,977
Lease liabilies HERE 40,099 21,369 10,426 71,894
124,530 21,369 10,426 156,325
31 March 2020 2020838318
Trade and bills payables EARABEREE 4511 - - 44511
Accrued liabiities and other payables excluding non-  JEiTEEREMEREE
financial liabilies (FERAEHN 25328 - - 25328
Lease libiltes HERE 45,843 2,724 1285 81,419
115,682 2,124 12,852 151,258
3.2 Capital Management 32 EFEH

FEBEAEE T EERAREREER
UFERE AN BEEEURERFEEN
BEARLER  UXFHEBRBUVERSR
REE °

AEBRELERRESESMEEHLERE
BUREELAZE - KREETJEARZR
BREREZRE  ORFEBREEARGHE
THBRG  UESRARERER - B
£20215F3831BK%2020F3A8318 L&
B EREANEECBEE  BEHRFL
mEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Conftinved) 3 MBRERERE)

3.2 Capital Management /Confinved)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 100%.
Current assets include inventories, contract assets, trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
tax recoverable and cash and bank balances. Current
liabilities include trade and bills payables, contract
liabilities, accrued liabilities and other payables, lease
liabilities and tax payable.

3.2 WHEE(H)
REBEFARBLR(ARBDEERUR
HERIERER - ARBECHRDER
REBLLEEN100% - RBEERCER
B -SHEE EZRUKRE  BAEX
H o BERHMEWERE - JREBIER
RERBITHES - RBDEEREEZREM
REREE - GHEE  EHaERHM
FBAERE  HERBERENHE -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Total current assets MEEERE 485,920 445,309
Total current liabilities BB EEE (163,652) (147,449)
Net current assets REEEFRE 322,268 297,860
Current ratio TENEE R 297% 302%

3.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

(i) Provision for inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have
been suffered from any impairment. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving items. The management estimates the net
realisable value for the inventories primarily on the
estimated future selling price and market conditions.
Where the estimates of the net realisable value are less
than expected, a material allowance may arise.

33 EHEeMEERSMAR
202138310 @ HESRIKE - TH
TREAEAZHEREUNRENEREE
REMEMBE (20206 : £) -

BEXEH SRR PR
REASBEFEMBBRREREERHYE
BREMRFIEHRzWE X  EEEEES
B RIAREEZRBEHAE - ERR
R MEREBRREE 2 TREETREER
ERRFREZFELEEIRB2REBFE
RAE -

(i) #HiEw
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EFEFRRE - EEEIRRRMEE
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China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS /Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation or amortisation is made if the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent professional qualified valuers. The fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are based on
market price of similar properties and locations. In relying
on the valuation reports of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
market conditions prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Any changes in the market conditions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group.

4 BEXEMEERIIERE)

(ii)

(iii)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS /Continued)
(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the loss allowance calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

(vi) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising from
impairment on inventories and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Significant management judgment is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R UIERARME
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing
and printing products and the sale of photographic
merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances;

(i) the service segment engages in the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing
products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual
advisory and custom design and installation services;

(iii) the investment segment comprises the Group’s businesses
in investment properties and other investment businesses;
and

(iv) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group's
corporate income and expense items.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the Directors. The Directors monitor the results
of its operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of
adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax. The adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/(loss) before income tax except that interest income,
finance cost and share of results of an associate are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
cash and bank balances and other unallocated corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a
mark-up of approximately 0.00% to 41.89% (2020: 0.00% to
41.97%).
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REMIEIRRMEE

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Conftinved)

5 BESWRHM#E)

(a) Operating segments (o) BERE
Merchandise Senice Investment Corporate and Others Eiminations Consolidated
ERHE i b LERAM fit ] 58
01 2000 201 2020 201 2020 200 2000 201 2020 01 2020
HKP'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETn BTn EETn BRTn BETn EETn BTn BTn BTn BETn BTn B
Segment revenue: AENE:
Sales to extemal customers AREF ZHE
- At a point in time -EfBRY 19168 72170 20821 21730 - = - = - - B0 743500
- Over fime -EEHELE - - 10450 1367% - - - = - - 450 13679
Interseqment sales ABEHE Qo708 617 48 43 - = - - (w4%86) (66120 = =
Oterincomeand gains ~~ EMMARME 5984 41790 08 659 1% 7187 60,108 13 (103376) (4100  M30 637
Changes infarvalue of ~~ REAEATERY
investment properties - - - - 19381 (3,587) - - - - 19381 (3,587)
Total a5 87317 831309 150,035 169446 31383 3600 60,108 13 (148362) (107130) 980501 897348
Segment profitiloss) AR/ (FE) 53 (1530 (89%) (11319 516 239 (5285 (10257) - - B%6 (3459)
Interet income REWA 1359 1!
Finance cost RERK (283) B39
Proftlloss) before income tax BREFEREAE/ (58) WA (3605
Income tax (expenselcedit SR (B%) /8% 254)  133%
Profioss) for the year ~ REERIE/ (BE) 31948 (31719
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Conftinved)

(@)

(b)

5 EESEAHE)

Operating segments /Continved) (o) BESME(E
Merchandise Service Investment Corporate and Others Consolidated
ER#E % k& BERES ga
201 2020 201 2020 2021 2020 201 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BETn BMTn BETn BETn BBt BETn BETn BETn BBt BT
Assets and liabilities BELEE
Segment assets HEEE U819 259651 75769 88822 246,666 227,040 46449 50129 587,663 6250642
Unallocated assets RAEE 283083 197720
Total assets EELE 870,746 823,362
Segment liabiles L 127492 107014 48231 59279 10538 10453 3968 3075 189429 179801
Unallocated lizbltes FARERE 53 35010
Total iabiltes BE4E 26960 214,831
Other segment information: RtAEER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% » BERREZITE
(Note 7) (&7) 5,178 4,678 8,190 9,083 - - 2,152 1837 15520 15598
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7)  EREAEZITE (H37) A961 870 B3 26919 - - - - 3T 5566
Capital expenditure (Note 13) BRER (K1) 6529 2490 288 313 - - 891 &4 1048 6479
Changes in fair value of investment RENELTELE (W 14)
properties (Note 14) - = - - (19381) 3587 - - (19381) 3587
(Reversal of provision)/provision for inventories % (/DR /BB (H3k7)
(Note 7) (4,188) 2,627 - - - - - - (4188 2627
Impairment loss on property, plant and 0% BERRBNRERE
equipment and right-of-use assets BECVERR 1305 6005 1703 218 = = = - 3008 8187
Impairment losses on financial assets SHEENEEE - - 310 - - - - - 310 -
i Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant L EXRBEZBIERABYE BEREE °
and equipment.
Geographical information (b) HMEZFH
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which BXGREME s 2 AEBWE DM
the transaction took place is as follows: T
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from external customers REIMAREF 2 W=
Hong Kong BB 916,750 880,272
People’s Republic of China ("PRC") REARSAME(HED - 26
916,750 880,298

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred tax assets and deposits) by location of assets is
as follows:

BREEMEHAD 2 AKEEAFRBDEE
(EEBIREERRERIM DHTAOT :

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Hong Kong &8 246,310 245,833
PRC P 126,131 119,692
372,441 365,525
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Continuved) 5
(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$31,190,000 (2020:
HK$41,491,000) was derived from sales by the
merchandise segment to a single customer.

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i) the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts; and (i) income from the rendering of
technical services for photographic developing and processing
products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual advisory
and custom design and installation services.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

BESEEHE)

(c) ER—RXEEFRZEH
g2k 4978 831,190,000 7T (20204 : 8
#41,491,000T) NEREEDEHET
B-EFAEEZHELE -

B« Rt AR R

WETAAREE SR BiHEEEm2
SFE(SHBRERERFN) » RINEHES
HEHERBRMRYE KBBRER  EELT
BRI ~ RETRZERBZWA -

Wi~ B ARKE 22T ¢

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue U=
Sale of goods EmiHE 791,689 721,770
Income from the rendering of services RERBE 2 WA 125,061 158,528
916,750 880,298
Other income and gains Hp e A & iz
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEWA 1,359 1,922
Gross rental income from investment properties ~ REYEHEESWALRE
(Note 14(a)) (MizE14(a)) 7,930 7,335
Marketing subsidy TG HEERE 5,208 8,113
Rental income from equipment HAZRBZBA 814 1,050
Rent concessions from lessors HEAEESER 2,702 1,795
Government grants BT B
— Employment Support Scheme (i) — R EFTEI() 21,601 =
— Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme (ii) —EEEZEHEG) 3,800 =
- Other government grants — HAth BUF % By 50 =
Others Hith 2,265 2,344
45,729 22,559

Note:

(i) The amount represents salaries and wages subsidies granted
under Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the use of paying
wages of employees from June to November 2020.

(i)  The amount represents government subsidies granted under
Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for subsidising retail stores’
operation.

FisE

() ZLBEABBHITHEBFELNHRREERE
SETHER2HFERITERE - LUR2020%F6
BZENBHEZIEETSE -

(i) ZEERBBEITREBUTE LB REE
SET BB HE  LWENTEER2LE -
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEESEAX
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FizE BET T BT T
Cost of inventories sold HETFEHAAE 654,854 598,515
Cost of services provided R B 34,070 40,733
Auditor’s remuneration ZE <
Audit services ERR 1,000 1,200
Non-audit services I EFZIRTS 613 672
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREZINE
equipment 13 15,520 15,598
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZNE 15 45,337 55,661
Advertising and marketing expenses ~ EERTISHERS 12,425 12,198
Short-term lease payments FEHAE AR 15 1,252 752
Variable lease payments ASHEENR 15 6,900 4,686
Losses on disposals of property, plant HEWE - BMERRZEZ
and equipment BB 7 236
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FE(BERR) BE
inventories (4,188) 2,627
Impairment losses on financial assets ~ €BEE 2 BE/RE 370 =
Legal and professional fee EEREEER 1,728 2,254
Employee benefit expense EERAHEX 8 117,650 121,059
Foreign exchange differences, net [EXES B8 (2,304) 2,700
Others Hith 56,293 64,867
Total cost of sales, selling and SHEMAK - SHERDHER -
distribution costs, advertising and BERTSHERRAZR
marketing expenses and THREXZEE
administrative expenses 941,527 923,758
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

8 RERBRFAX(BREEMS)

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages and salaries IERES 115,607 115,867
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BINE A - REMKEE 4,659 4,958
(Write back of)/provision for long service RERSS (E8),#iE

payment (2,616) 234
117,650 121,059

Note: iz

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans for its
employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments based on certain percentage of
the relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further constructive obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which
is managed by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group and its employees in Hong
Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% (2020: 5%) of
each individual’s relevant income or a limited amount as prescribed by
the MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and independently administered.

W B IR WA AR AR B RARRFERGH

R o

AEECRETRES 2 RS ERE /KT
£ Eiﬁﬁémmﬁﬁé‘ﬁﬁﬁmii ZIARE
EBARAZETEDLELHER - mRRE
A *EFL‘E#*%FEEEEE&*BKL
RESAERKBREE o BRIFEHEIIN - K
SEPRANEFSEE - SNEESE -

TEBTAEREBNEER L REMRNKE
2 BEFEHRERFMEAE ST ERA
M BESEOADIMORESITEAERE - X&
EREEBESHNBIRBESKROIFMTAIZE
EEBEBARZ5% (2020F | 5%)H ERE
BEHMR - stEMNEERAEENEESH
e UBIEE -
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10

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2020: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 34. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2020: two) non-Directors, highest paid
employee for the year were as follows:

SAimEHFMAL
FERSNHRSHMNES®BIE3M (20205 : 317)
BE HFMFRCAME34EE - FRER
217(2020%F  2fU) S MMEERIESE - &
LoEHMFENT ¢

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and allowances e RIERL 2,654 2,402
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EAR& A — S EMFRETE 36 36
2,690 2,438

The non-Director, highest paid employee’s remuneration fell
within the following bands:

HEERESFHES2HMEWABRIUTE
:

Number of employees

BEAE
2021 2020
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 ¥ 1T E 8 %1,000,0007T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 71,000,001 T &% 1,500,0007T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 £7&%2,000,0007T 1 -
2 2
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 10 FR#MBAX (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, Hong Kong profits tax
has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 March 2021, one (2020:
one) subsidiary of the Group is entitled to this tax benefit. The
profits of other Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profit tax regime are continued
to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

HE2021F3A31RLFE  BBAEHRBE
EEBREZ A5 ERAME - B’EZE16.5%
(2020 : 16.5%)5HREE ©

RERNSERAG - ERLARIBE B
2,000,0007C128.25% 2 B R B MFLE - M
BBHE2,000,0007T 2R MASIR16.5% 2 B =4
WBIE - BE2021F3A31HILEEFE » A&EHE
E—E(2020F  —E)MBARAUIZZEER
BKEE - RNEBEMB LM A FEREH BN
HERHMEEEE 2R BAEER16.5%
ZE—BIREHBE o

Annual Report  2020/21 FEXERSE

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) /Continuved) 10 FRSMBEST(EBR) (&)
Taxation on profits assessable for the year in the PRC has AEEPEBERRAENBERNEB LS
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the location in B2 BRITHEFE

which the Group operates.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong EHRE BB
Charge for the year FAFHR 249 432
Over provision in prior years (Note) A F 2 BEEERE (M) (135) (3,839)
Current tax — PRC EHBIE - FE
Charge for the year FRFHR 489 770
603 (2,637)
Deferred tax (Note 26) IR TE (FIEE26) 1,921 (1,698)
Income tax expense/(credit) Friskipx(ER) 2,524 (4,335)
Note: FI5E
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group reversed the tax provision BE2020F3A31BLEFE AEBERRETF/ELH
of approximately HK$3,484,000 made in prior years in relation to the e M HE AR BRIE FTE 4 2 H AU A BB B IR BB
other income arising from waiver of other payables. Management have W B¥3,484,000T - EEECEHNFHEREHE
thoroughly revisited the situations and concluded that there were grounds oo WRBRBERERNEERRALEELEMER
for the reversal as the tax authority did not lodge any enquiry letter within R MEERELEIE o
the period of the statutory time framework.
The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax differs from the BRAEBEBRFTSHARNE (FE) 2B EERAM
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate TR EANGEEREFEMELEZERBEZ
applicable to losses of the consolidated entities as follows: EREOT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BMRATEEIAIRIE, (E5i8) 34,472 (36,054)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable Z&BIZR i EREE A E i =
to profits in respective countries/regions FTE2HE 6,326 (6,271)
Over provision in prior years FEZBERE (135) (3,839)
Income not subject to tax B A (6,099) (1,063)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose NI 2,480 3,841
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset RERELERIEEE ZHIEEE
was recognised 2,813 3,720
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses X858 T RFER 2 FiBEE (2,861) (723)
Income tax expense/(credit) FSRiE%(Kx) 2,524 (4,335)
11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11 SRR (5E)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on: BREXRRF(BE)REUTEEFE
2021 2020
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the RATREE AEEFIE(FE)
Company (HK$'000) (B¥F ) 33,635 (29,093)
Weighted average number of ordinary ERITERR 2 METIIH
shares in issue 1,185,318,349 1,185,318,349
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREXREF(FE) GBL) 2.84 (2.45)
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11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE /Conftinued) 11 SRR (58)E)
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) HRAEEREE20215EK202063H8318 1k
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March FEVHMEBRTETHEZER » MALRMZ
2021 and 2020 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no ZFEERIERERRA (BE)EHEE
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years. T o
12 DIVIDENDS 12 BER
The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a EEEEENEZE2021F3A831 B IEFERS
final dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share (2020: Nil), REREBRZBERIBMW(2020F : &) &
amounting to an aggregate of approximately HK$11,853,000 H#978%11,853,0007T ° NEENEIRALR
for the year ended 31 March 2021. The proposed final BAGALATABRRRAQAGAERRRBFAE
dividend for the year is subject to the approval by the EHUER > FAMEE c HERESMBHRRILE
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual RYGZIEENRE ©
general meeting of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERDE
Furniture,
fixtures and
leasehold  Machinery and
Buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
B - REBR
BT HENERE  BERRE "B ELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR
At 1 April 2020 1202064 718
Cost B 29,182 94,327 57,226 6,030 186,765
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  23HTEREHE (16,974) (82,336) (44,309) (4,564) (148,183)
Net book amount REEFE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZ201E3A31ALERE
Opening net book amount at 1 April 2020 ®2020E4 818 2 ERAFE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
Additions #m — 9,228 > 1,020 10,248
Disposals HE = (12) = = (12)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) RERX (MW7) (1,854) (11,221) (1,750) (695) (15,520)
Impairment loss HEFE = (52) (43) = (95)
Exchange realignment [E R AR 461 - - _ 461
Closing net book amount ERRERE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3 7318
Cost B 30,325 92,325 56,816 7,050 186,516
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  B3HFERBE (19,510) (82,391) (45,692) (5,259) (152,852)
Net book amount REFE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Continved)

13 %% - BER&ME(E)

Furniture,
fixtures and
leasehold  Machinery and

Buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
B £ER
BF HENERE  HERRE nE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2019 1201954818
Cost A 28,666 100,3%4 58,733 6,663 194,456
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R HERFE (15,905) (81,978) (44,102) (4,511) (146,496)
Net book amount REFE 12,761 18,416 14,631 2,152 47,960
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3A310LFE
Opening net book amount at 1 April 2019 2019F48 1B 2 EMEEFE 12,761 18,416 14,631 2,152 47,960
Additions 2 - 6,479 - - 6,479
Disposals HE - (242) = - (242)
Gains on revaluation (Note i) Bfbla () 565 - - = 565
Transfer to investment properties (Note i) BB ZREWE (KzH) (1,365) = = = (1,365)
Transfer from investment properties (Note ii) &% BRENE (ki) 2,522 = = = 2,522
Depreciation charge (Note 7) RERX (MW7) (1,719) (11,504) (1,689) (686) (15,598)
Impairment loss HEFE - (1,158) (25) = (1,183)
Exchange realignment EHAR (556) = = = (556)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 12,208 11,991 12917 1,466 38,582
At 31 March 2020 12020637318
Cost A 29,182 94,327 57,226 6,030 186,765
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  23HTERFE (16,974) (82,336) (44,309) (4,564) (148,183)
Net book amount RERE 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582

Depreciation expense of HK$2,234,000 (2020: HK$2,240,000)
has been charged to “Cost of sales”, HK$7,917,000 (2020:
HK$7,733,000) has been charged to “Selling and distribution
costs”, and HK$5,369,000 (2020: HK$5,625,000) has been
charged to “Administrative expenses”.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of HK$13,269,000 and right-of-use assets of
HK$63,968,000 that were subject to impairment tests in the
event that trading performance is below expectation or store
is loss making. The Group considered each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit (“CGU")
and performed impairment assessments on each of the CGU
with impairment indicators by considering the recoverable
amount of such assets at retail store level.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates
of the recoverable amounts were based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections based on
the financial forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such
as percentage change in sales growth rate and percentage
change in running cost. As a result, an impairment loss
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of HK$95,000 and HK$2,913,000 (2020: HK$1,183,000
and HK$7,004,000) respectively were recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

TE B X B #2,234,000 (2020 F : B
2,240,0007t) ~ #%7,917,0007T (20205 : &
#£7,733,0007t ) & B %55,369,0005T (20204 :
7BHE5,625,0007T) E DRI SHERAE | TH#HE
RAHB A IRMTEHMA K -

M2021F3A318  XEBHEENYE - BE
REBERBY13,269,000 TR FEAREESS
#£63,968,000T © AERZRPENFEHHIE
HEEBNERTETRENR - XEEBESE
AESEEHAB Y ABIBESELSEN  UE
BZEEECSEREEANTKRE®E A%
EERERRNB L UERRSEEEMET
WERIR o

WEEEHEENRAEAREGHTRE S
o AZEENKRAERBRZETREISE -
At RE S ENREEEBHEZRERT
HHMNM KRR - RAMRESRETER s
BENFAEEMEE  HXEHR{AMMBEY
RENBOLLEBREERENE I LESE
Hit > 9% - BERZEUARCHAEEENH
EEE D B B8 895,000t K B %2,913,000
7t (20204 : 8% 1,183,000t ) 78 #%7,004,000
7T) 0 WHRERE RS RFER °

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Continved)

14

Note:

13 %% - BER&M(E)

FieE

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group changed the (i)
use for an office unit occupied by the Group to earn rentals.

As a result, the relevant property and the right-of-use asset of
the office unit carried at fair value amounted HK$1,365,000
and HK$5,435,000 respectively were reclassified as investment

property at the date of transfer (Note 14).

At the date of transfer, the difference between the carrying

value amount of and fair value of property and right-of-use
assets for the year ended 31 March 2020 were HK$565,000
and HK$2,294,000 (Note 15) respectively. Such valuation gains
have been recognised in the asset revaluation reserve in the

consolidated statement of change in equity.

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group changed the (i)
use for an office unit from earning rentals to being occupied

by the Group. As a result, the relevant investment properties of

the office unit carried at fair value were reclassified as property

and the right-of-use asset at the date of transfer amounted to
HK$2,522,000 and HK$10,306,000 respectively (Note 14).

BZE2020F3A31ALEE » AEEBAEE
FEARABNNARERAKREAES -
o BRAFEARNZHOBNVHEBEYER
EAEEESES B ABY1,365000T KRB
5,435,000t NEBEREHN I BEAREWE
(BHEE14) ©

REBER » BE2020F3831BLFEWMER
ERAREENRAEEAFTEZBNEEIBR
7B #565,0007T R B #2,294,000 7T (&£ 15) °
ZEMERSERGEESEDRINEESM
HENER o

BZE2020F3A31BLFE » REBAGHAEN
WARKRRBESERAAAEEMEA - B
It BAFEARNZHAENMWIEREREYE
REBEAEHNIEAVEREHREE  He
5 BB B 2,522,0007T & % 10,306,000 7T
(BHEE14) °

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 ¥{EM*E
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At fair value RATEFE
Opening balance FHEER 225,436 235,580
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEREHIRAFEARNYE -
at fair value (Note 13()) B R sk (MIEE133)) - 1,365
Transfer from right-of-use assets B HIERAFEARY
at fair value (Note 13()) fEREEE (ME130) - 5,435
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREYE  BRERRE
(Note 13(ii) (HFEE13(0) - (2,522)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 13(ii)) B EFRAEEE (MEE1330) - (10,306)
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustment ~ AFEF R W/ (FE)F5E 19,381 (3,587)
Exchange realignment Rk 690 (529)
Closing balance FREER 245,507 225,436
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continued)
The Group’'s investment properties are held under the
following lease terms:

R UIERARME

14 ®_EMEE)
AEBZRENERUTERHOEE -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Medium term leases in the Hong Kong' UREBZPEHEIYE 126,457 114,247
Medium term leases in the PRC' LR B Z R ERFE A P 110,951 104,439
Long term leases in the PRC' RFEZ REFEAOYE 8,099 6,750
245,507 225,436

(@)

(b)

Medium term leases are for period ranging from 10 to 50 years
while long term leases are for period over 50 years.

FHEIANFHRNF10ERS0F - MERPALN
FHIABBS0EF

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for (a) HEVEREASRRZEE
investment properties
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Gross rental income (Note 6) LW ABE (HEEe) 7,930 7,335
Direct expenses (including repairs and OS2 REMEREEZ
maintenance) arising on rental-earning HERX (BEEERRE)
investment properties (1,680) (1,438)
6,250 5,897

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2020: Nil).

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Chung,
Chan & Associates, to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
The revaluation gains or losses are included in “Changes
in fair value of investment properties” in the consolidated
income statement. The following table analyses the
investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation
method.

(b)

R2021%3A318 - AEEXRESTHE
REBEHEZRREERREEE (20205 ¢
) -

LFERER

{LEET#T&1T(Chung, Chan & Associates)
ERAEBMeBREYEETELMGE U
EEREWER2021FK2020F3H31H
WAFE  EHBETAGRERERNE

FEBADHNBRATEIRZRENED
#r o
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Conftinuved) 14 BEMEE)
(b) Fair value hierarchy /Continued) (b) XFERR(E
Fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

HAEATTEERAEBTEATE

(Level 3) (Level 3)
(%E34) (5834)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Recurring fair value measurements REHENFETE
Investment properties: REPE :
- Industrial building units — Hong Kong ~ — TEEFEN-FS 126,457 114,247
— Commercial office units — PRC —BEERAZTEN—FE 119,050 111,189
245,507 225,436
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and AEBNBERAEREBNSHIER
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date ESRTEARILNTEBRSRAIZE
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the WER c FRWEE 1K - F2RKRE3IR
transfer. There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 ZERNER -
during the year.
The following table presents the changes in investment TREIEE2021FK2020F3H318LE
properties with fair value measurements using significant FE FREATITBEEBWAETELT
unobservable inputs (level 3) for the years ended 31 B(ERWREYEZEE -
March 2021 and 2020.
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31HLEE
PRC Hong Kong Total
FE &8 Fk ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Opening balance FHEEE 111,189 114,247 225,436
Net gains from fair value adjustment A FEARE W FEE 7,171 12,210 19,381
Exchange realignment B 7R 690 - 690
Closing balance FRER 119,050 126,457 245,507
Total gains for the year included in FREWEGEAGRE
the consolidated income statement, WaRRIBEMER
under “Changes in fair value of FEEEIAN)
investment properties” 7,171 12,210 19,381
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14 ®B#EYMXE)
(b) XFERB®H(E)
BZE2020F3A831HILEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continuved)
(b) Fair value hierarchy /Confinved)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

138

(c)

PRC Hong Kong Total
FE &8 xR
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Opening balance FHERR 117,440 118,140 235,580
Transfer from property, plant and BB EHEAFTEARY
equipment at fair value "E -  BMERRE = 1,365 1,365
Transfer from right-of-use assets ERRRAFEARN
at fair value ERAREE - 5,435 5,435
Transfer to property, plant and EHREYE  BEKR
equipment B3] - (2,522) (2,522)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREHREESE = (10,306) (10,306)
Net (losses)/gains from fair value AR EFARZ (FHE),
adjustment Wz FAE (5,722) 2,135 (3,587)
Exchange realignment kS (529) = (529)
Closing balance FREER 111,189 114,247 225,436
Total (losses)/gains for the year FRE(EE) =
included in the consolidated income  (FFAZR&EWEKRI R
statement, under “Changes in fair EYMELNTEEE
value of investment properties” A) (5,722) 2,135 (3,587)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$245,507,000 (2020: HK$225,436,000) as at 31
March 2021 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The finance department reports
directly to the chief operating decision-maker. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the
chief operating decision-maker, finance department and
the independent valuer on a regular basis.

At each financial year end the finance department:

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

e Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

e Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each
reporting date between the chief operating decision-
maker, finance team and the independent valuer.

(c) FREMEEBE

AEBEBZREVERBIEESRERM
BEI#&17(Chung, Chan & Associates)
(LEEMSEHEERTEEER > I
HAMMENRENEN LB NETE
FEARER ) R2021F3A31 HEHEE
A 78 245,507,000 7T(2020 F : B #E
225,436,0007t) - ETREVHECIRKE
MAHZERFE=S > HBEEFBECHR
RERE BB RRMEE29 ©

REBEP WA BIRE B WERB LA
BEMELNGEE  TEEOFELERE
ERE TBLERKE - MBBREL
hEMENNREERERER -

B RS ER R S A B B R

e REBBUMGMERENFEER@A
& ;

o Y FFEEMERSTEYEGES
B, K

o HEBVILEMETH® o

FELERRE - MBEEBRB I EER

REREDPAREIRDFEEEELHD

e
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Confinuved)
(d) Valuation techniques

14 ®_EMEE)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are
generally determined using the direct comparison
approach. By making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets,
comparable properties in close proximity have been
analysed, and adjustments have been made to account
for the difference in factors such as locations and

property size etc.

These significant unobservable inputs include:

(d) fEEFZE

ERAEXRTHRGAENELTE

FEBRENENDFE-—REEELR
EEE  RBERETSNTUELRHEE
X5 DML EN T ELLBYELR
NERMERBELZAZNZRFEHBE -

REERTIUHERAERSE

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
31 March 2021 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs inputs to fair value
R2021%3A31H
ZAVE EIE -2 FUBREAER
A (B¥Tr) HERE FABEHAE WAEZEE AFEZBHE
Industrial units - 126,457 Direct comparison Adjusted market HK$2,820 - HK$5,312 The higher the adjusted
Hong Kong approach price per square foot market price, the higher
the fair value
THEEBTFEN- BEEHET BRETIHER BYHREM2,8200 KRAEMSERES
BB EH¥S3127T AFEED
Office units - 119,050 Direct comparison Adjusted market RMB10,257- The higher the adjusted
PRC approach price RMB31,630 per market price, the higher
square meter the fair value
PWAZEN-HE BEEEET BRETHER BYAKARE10,257 EREMZERES
TEARE31630T ATEES
Fair value at Range of Relationship of
31 March 2020 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs inputs to fair value
M2020%63A31H
20V FIRE FARRBAER
HE (B¥TR) REHE TUBEBAE WAEZEE AHEZBR
Industrial units - 114,247 Direct comparison Adjusted market HK$2,482 - HK$5,333 The higher the adjusted
Hong Kong approach price per square foot market price, the higher
the fair value
THEFEN- BELEE BRETHER BYAREW2 4820 KRENSERES AT
5# ZHE¥5333 EHS
Office units - 111,189 Direct comparison Adjusted market RMB9,543 - The higher the adjusted
PRC approach price RMB31,193 per market price, the higher
square meter the fair value
RAZEN-FE BELEE BRETHER BYHRARY BREMSERES 2
9,543 TE AR EES
31,1937

Annual Report  2020/21 FEXERSE

139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

15 LEASES 15 8
This note provides information for leases where the Group is AMFREEEAEEFERAEREAZHENE
a lessee. e
Leasehold Properties
land held lease for  Equipment
for own use own use lease Total
BA BA
e MERE REHE #A%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3831ALFE
Opening net book amount A2020F48182
at 1 April 2020 FHREEE 33,375 53,685 14,447 101,507
Additions 2 - 40,129 - 40,129
Lease modification HEBET = (217) = (217)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) HresBa sz (PFIaE7) (1,626) (40,349) (3.362) (45,337)
Impairment A = (2,913) = (2,913)
Exchange realignment Rz 101 - - 101
Closing net book amount FERIREFEE 31,850 50,335 11,085 93,270
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15 LEASES /Continued)

15 & (&)
Leasehold Properties
land held lease for  Equipment
for own use own use lease Total
BA BA
HELHh YERE REHEE xR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT  BETR  B¥T BT

Right-of-use assets FRAEEE
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31HLEE
Opening net book amount at MA20195F481H=Z

1 April 2019 EYBREEE 27,746 72,986 16,850 117,582
Additions 2 hn = 38,206 1,229 39,435
Gains on revaluation (Note 13(i)) Bl (BFEE1303)) 2,294 - - 2,294
Transfer to investment properties EBREREME (MEE130)

(Note 13(i) (5,435) - - (5,435)
Transfer from investment properties ¥ B &% (H3E13(i))

(Note 13(ii)) 10,306 - - 10,306
Depreciation charge (Note 7) FrERX (FE7) (1,526) (50,503) (3,632) (55,661)
Impairment A = (7,004) = (7,004)
Exchange realignment R (10) - - (10)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 33,375 53,685 14,447 101,507

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(a) RiFEMBRARPEIHEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Lease liabilities HEERE
Current TE 38,116 43,329
Non-current ERE 30,921 34,191
69,037 77,520
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15 LEASES /Conftinued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

R UIERARME

15 HE(#)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) RiFEKkEFPEIHEE
statement
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Finance costs &M 2,853 3,379
Expense relating to short-term lease payments  EEHIESHFBBHEX (GTA
(included in “Selling and distribution costs” [BERIHEBR IRMTHAX D)
and "Administrative expenses”) (Note 7) (BI=E7) 1,252 752
Expense relating to variable lease payments BT AHESBENTEHEE
not included in lease liabilities (included in FREBENFEX GTATHEHER
“Selling and distribution costs”) (Note 7) FHER 1) (MEE7) 6,900 4,686
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets FRREEZINERX (ME7)
(Note 7) 45,337 55,661

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
March 2021 was HK$56,698,000 (2020: HK59,752,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties and equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2
to 7 years but may have extension options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

Variable lease payments

Some properties leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. For
individual stores, certain lease payments are on the
basis of variable payment terms with percentages
ranging from 7.5% to 9% of sales (2020: 7.5% to 9%).
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total
lease payments by approximately HK$690,000 (2020:
HK$469,000).

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of properties across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

(c)

(d)

(e)

HZE2021F3831ALLEE  HEBER
H 48 28 5 58 556,698,000 7T (20206 : 8
#59,752,0007T) °

FREMBRTEL R MAAR

FEBAESENERRA - AEAOE
BB ETEMBEENR  HAEEENT
PR 0 SRR IR © R IR RS E R
ERBERE B2 EETRNEREHE
# o

AR S

BoMFEERSEEHEENHERD
WA SRR - @RIEHAE - &T
HENRDRETZARIERAN FHE
B 7.5% Z9% (20205 : 7.5% £ 9%)
T o AIRNRIRR D ERSERE M E
A BREERECSEEFHNEERAK
2 - BFHEEMENTEBAEMARRN
BRZENRNBRBELEDBNESEPE

S
7 °

WAEBAEZETSHESHNRESE
HIHERIEMI0% - EE MRS E M
#)78%690,0007T (202045 : #BH469,000
TT) e

ERAR #2 1L SRR
REBNZEYEBEERRKILEE
o HERRANEESHNELRETEN
EEHARL - FENKSBEEH R K L2
EREARBARETE WARAZEN
HBAITHE -
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16 SUBSIDIARIES 16 BT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 are R2021F3A31BZEEMBARFENT :
as follows:

Ownership interest held by
UT ALFsHEEEER

Place of incorporation/ non-
establishment and Issued ordinary controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital the Company interests  place of operation
SR R ER 3]
2% HRRBHE ERTEBREA 07 i EEEBRERY
Direct  Indirect
BE mE
Callas Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Property holding in
liability company HK$2 Hong Kong
BEESFREBRLA & BRERALA LEREE T REBRENERE
China-Hongkong Photo British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share - 100% - Investment holding in
Retail Limited limited liability company US$1 Hong Kong
FABRIEZERERAT KBRLHS EERIZER REBUSRERR
BREELT
China-Hongkong Graphic ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution
Arts Products Limited liability company HK$10,000 of printing products in
Hong Kong
HERIEMERA R &% BREADA EERE10,0007 REBEBRSHRER
C.Y. Sun Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% - - Investment holding in
limited liability company Us$10,000 Hong Kong
RERZRE  BREME EBERI0000ER REBURSRERR
N
E-Max Service Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of installation
liability company HK$10,000 service for household
appliances in
Hong Kong
EEIRERBERAA &% BREADA EBRE10,0007 REBREZAERZE
R
Emmy Technology Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 70% 30%  Provision of professional
Development Limited liability company HK$10,000 audio-visual advisory
and custom design and
installation services in
Hong Kong
YERBRRBRAA &% BREADA EERE10,0007 REBRUESEYERBAR

TR R REERE
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16 SUBSIDIARIES /Confinved)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
HRMAYL LR
ERERME

R UIERARME

16 MEAT(E)
Ownership interest held by
UTALFstEe s

Principal activities and
place of operation

IREBREFME

Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd.

REX(ER)DE

FotoWorks (Hong Kong)
Limited

Fuji Life Science Products
Limited

ETEBRHERERAR

Fuji Photo Products
Company Limited

ELRYENERAF

Great Earnings Investments
Limited

HERERRAR

Majestic Income Limited

BEAERAT

Orderly Mind Enterprises
Limited

BREEFRAR

Orient City Properties
Limited

Palace Glory Limited

WERRAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  BREELT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELT

non-
Issued ordinary controlling
share capital the Company interests
FFEH
ERTEBRRA NG| g
Direct  Indirect
Ei B
Ordinary share - 100% -
HK$1,000,000
EBRBH
1,000,0007T
Ordinary share - 65% 35%
HK$6,800,000
EBRABS
6,800,0007T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -
EERB® 2T
Ordinary share - 100% -
HK$10,000,000
EERABS
10,000,0007T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -
EBERB® 2T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -
EBERB® 2T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -
EBERB® T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -
EERER T
Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% -

EERER2T

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT

Provision of photographic
developing and processing
services and retail of
photographic merchandise
in Hong Kong

REBREBRYRPERBER
RESRNEBE

Provision of imaging solution
in Hong Kong

REBRUFBRRLE

Retail of skincare products in
Hong Kong
REBNEEEERTE

Marketing and distribution of
photographic developing
and processing products
in Hong Kong and Macau

REBREMEREREHRES
RAER

Property holding in Hong
Kong
REBRENESRE

Property holding in Hong
Kong
REBRENESE

Property holding in Hong
Kong
REBRENESRST
Property holding in Hong
Kong
REBRENESRSE
Property holding in the PRC

RPERENESE



16 SUBSIDIARIES /Confinved)

16 MBAT(E)
Ownership interest held by
UTALFsEE R

Place of incorporation/ non-
establishment and Issued ordinary controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital the Company interests  place of operation
SR LR Ei3]
A% EEERNE BRTEBERRA KQH s  TEEBREXNH
Direct  Indirect
BE mE
Pride High Company Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
HARRAT BB BREALH EBRESLT RPERENERE
Pro Audio Development Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 70% 30%  Wholesales of audio and
Limited liability company HK$10,000 visual products in Hong
Kong
EX¥TRREBRLA BB BREALH EBREH10,0007T REBRBFTER
Sky Rich (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
RE(ENERAT BB BREALH EBRE%LT RPBERENERE
Sky Year Resources Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
REERERDA BB BREALH EBRE%LT RPERENERE
Wai Ming Electrical Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 60% 40%  Retail and wholesales of
Development Limited liability company HK$10,000 consumer electronic
products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
BREXBREERLT BE  BREALH EER 10,0007 REBUSHEEFERR
ZRERTERME
YCY International Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Retail and wholesales of
liability company HK$10,000 consumer electronic
products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
ZREBERAR BB BREALH EER 10,0007 REBREFEETERR
ZRERTERME
SABRERERE (L) BRAT  PRC, limited liability Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of

company

HE - ARERAT

US$150,000

EBR150,000% 7T
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16

17

SUBSIDIARIES /Continued) 16 MBLATE(E)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERMINESRABETEERFEEERE
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results FERMLAEEFERE T EIM 2 ARRA T M
for the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets BRAE - EERARIHHMMB LR ZFES
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in FREBALER °
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
In the opinion of the Directors that there is no non-controlling FEERA UEHAEEMSBE K2 FEH
interests that are material to the Group. MRER
AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 17 Bl—MHEATRIE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRY - BRATE = =
Amount due from an associate FE Uk — R B 1 B FRE 32,720 32,720
Less: Provision for impairment (Note) b ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁi) (32,720) (32,720)
Note: FisE
The Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk of the amount due RAE R EAELAARENEERRE

from an associate is considered to be high because the associate has net
deficit as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: incurring losses and net
deficit), which, it has become uncertain that continuing financial support
can be provided by the associate’s holding company to enable the associate
to settle this balance. Provision for impairment of HK$32,720,000 was
recognised as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
approximates to its fair value.

= JEI%%%EH?& AFA2021F3A31 BB FEM
(2020%3A310 : EXEBBRIEEFEHM)  FTRE
%ﬂﬁm/&ﬁE’JEHQ@E@EE\%R%EE@M%E%%%

SATEE AR 0 M20219F K%2020838318 ' B
TR EREEB%32,720,0007T °

FEUR — R B D BRI
BEREE °

FEur — R B N B RROR

E

= o

BREEAREE LA

ZIREEEA A TER
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17 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE /Conftinved)

18

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in an associate.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, details of the Group's
interest in an associate are as follows:

17 El—RMBEXTRR(E)

MEAAEEN -—BRE AR 2 EEZERZR
REE -

M20215F K2020%F3A31H » REBER —RH
ENR 2 RERFBAOT ¢

Percentage of

Place of incorporation  Issued ordinary equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Group Principal activities Measurement method
£ AMRIRELLHE CROEBRRA FEEEEREADL TEXK HE=¥:03
kikki.K Retail (H.K.) Hong Kong Ordinary share 49% Retail of stationery, Equity
Limited HK$300,000 life-style gifts and
home fashion
products
B @R #300,0007T ftEXA - £FERR BH
ZEORERTE

Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate is
as follows:

FEBEBENR 2MBERRENT ¢

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BET T

Total assets BEMRER 4,458 5,709

Total liabilities B E85E 34,555 41,432

Revenue g 4,074 9,277

Profit/(loss) for the year REERE(FHE) 5,626 (4,938)
INVENTORIES 18 &

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic
developing, processing and printing products, skincare
products, consumer electronic products and household
appliances for resale.

The cost of inventories amounted to HK$654,854,000 (2020:
HK$598,515,000) and a reversal of provision for inventories
of HK$4,188,000 (provision for inventories for 2020:
HK$2,627,000) were included in “Cost of sales”.

AEE2FEFTEAMBEE RS PR
MER #EBEER HEETEDRZAEESE
25 o

17 85 B 7 8 % 654,854,000 jt(2020 & :
7 598,515,000t ) R FERE R H B
4,188,0007T (2020 FE#iHE: /812,627,000
T TIEt AT &R A ] o
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19

20

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from professional audio-visual installation services as
the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
completion of installation service. Upon completion of
installation service, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the expected timing of
recovery or settlement for contract assets is within one year.

Significant changes in contract assets

Contract assets have increased as the Group has provided
more installation services. No losses allowance for contract
assets was recognised.

R UIERARME

19 8NRE

ENRDTREREERFRERD TR ER
BME  RENEEERUEESITTERE
FrERER W SR B AT A R FERD - ER R KRB
% EBRARENEENSHESENIEZES
FEWERIE -

M2021F%2020563A31H - ENEENTED
WEIHEEFERE—FA o

SNREZEXEH
HRAEERUBRZZERYE  HANEESR
Frigin - WEHENWEERDEREE -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 BHEKREA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables & 5 EWRE 46,200 43,675

Less: impairment losses on trade receivables BB RWERE 2R EEE

(Note 3.1(ii)(b)) (HMFEE3.1Gi)(b)) (370) =
Trade receivables — net E S EWIRE —F5E 45,830 43,675

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, these
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the aging from billing.

See Note 3.1(ii)(b) for credit risk exposure and expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables the Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

As at 31 March, 2021 and 2020, due to the short-term
nature of the current receivables, their carrying amounts
are considered to be the same as their fair values and are
denominated in HK$.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are either on a
cash basis or on credit. For credit sales, the credit period is
generally 15 to 30 days, except for certain well-established
customers where the terms are extended to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit pre-approved by senior
management. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

AEERAEEBMBHRELERFEIRRE 2
LR ERFEHMEEBER;RERE - RERAF
HEZRURERAREFERERDEER
B - BRI ERHMEEERE  ZZRURETIR
BARGERRSBRIRERKSA

ERESRUREMAENEERBRRABRE
BERREE - REE3.1G)Db) °

FEEHREBRSREELEIFHEIERERE
R85 RYIRIA 2 REE -

20215 K% 2020F3A31H » HARBENR
IREHREE @  ARREERRASENAEQT
8 - WLUBHEEHE

FEEREFZRBBAUBRSHBREAR
BT - BRRSBEMS  EEH-—KH15Z
308 ERMARENEFERAITLERE120
B -BNEFYERSEERE  THERE
BREELME - NEBBDBEEFREREZ
FEUERTE @ Wik AR EEFBAURERES
BERK - EREEECHREEIEH -
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Conftinuved) 20 EHEWRE(E)

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, balances are relating to a M2021FE K2020F 38318 » #RTIES LT
large number of diversified customers. BEFEHE -
The aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end REZEHTTE  HREGERENE S EKER
of the year, based on the invoice date and before loss HRERZRRDTWT ¢
allowances, is as follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Up to 30 days R#E30H 39,447 32,468
31 to 60 days 31260H 4,521 7,921
61 to 90 days 61290H 576 887
91 to 120 days 91£120H 726 1,168
Over 120 days 120BH L 930 1,231
46,200 43,675

21 NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS, CURRENT PREPAYMENTS, 21 ¥iRBEEE - REIRMRE - H&RHEfh

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES U IRIR
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current portion BN D
Deposits and other receivables Ze R EMERERE 25,753 25,028
Prepayments FASFRIE 15,378 7,517
41,131 32,545
Non-current portion kKRBT S
Deposits e 12,267 12,354
Due to the short-term nature of the other current receivables, AAHMREEWIRBENREE - HREER
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as REBREDFE < 3. 1)L HIIEEE
their fair value. Note 3.1(ii)(b) sets out information about the REERERFTEEEERRNER -
impairment of financial assets and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

R UIERARME

22 RERBITEER

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-pledged time deposits with original REERBBE=EAZ
maturity of over three months HEIKAEEFER 27,226 22,926
Cash and cash equivalents in the HEBRERERAZESR
consolidated statement of cash flows: HE&%EEER
Cash and bank balances ReRIVTHER 119,694 89,702
Non-pledged time deposits with original REHBLR=@AZ
maturity of less than three months IR ERFR 135,743 84,686
255,437 174,388
282,663 197,314

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$33,132,000
(2020: HK$29,597,000) which were deposited with the banks
in the PRC. The remittance of such balances out of the PRC
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and over one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

REXR AEBUARBHEZBESRE
THEERH B 133,132,000 T (20204 : B #
29,597,0007C) FRABIHER ZRIT - EFRFZ
LEBZE P EIRINEE T E BT K INE
BEFRIRAIKER o

FRIET2REBBRTE B FRFRRIUT
BAE - REAEEHANBREFIR 22
o BEHESRFRE-BE-—FUERE - I
DRIREB TR 2 EMFE  MITHEBRIFNEE
REFAWREMHENLCHEZRIT - AEER
ERRELSEEE 2REBEEEATVERS -
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24

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23 ARl

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Receipt in advances from customers AR FRIE 19,781 11,185
Customer loyalty programmes = FEHE 320 787
20,101 11,972

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities FHRENARHERRZKS

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

TRIITAHEHEREESNEERTHENE
RS -

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue recognised that was included FTAGHBEZ S FHCHER
in the contract liability balance at the Wz
beginning of the year
Receipt in advances from customers EREFRIE 10,965 14,239
Customer loyalty programmes = FEHE 753 135

All services contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed (2020: Same).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade and bills payables at the end of
the year, based on the date of goods purchased and services
rendered, is as follows:

24

FERBENDRP—FRERE - REBUK
BELEREISHAAT PEEZSERETE
NN ZER LI E (20205 : H8E) -
BHEMBRRRRE

REBEEMREMRE2AHFE - E5E
NRERZERFRZREDHTAOT :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Within 3 months 3B B LR 52,090 42,386
Over 3 months 3EB UL 1,364 2,125
53,454 44,511

The Group's trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables approximate
to their fair values.

AEECESERMNREREEARE - BER
AMR0BRHIRAME - AREEZEAKRER
REZREEEAQNFERS °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

25 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EBtABRREMEFSKRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Other payables HAbhE(TER1E 7,999 13,820
Accrued expenses FEETRISX 38,838 31,998
Total k) 46,837 45,818
Less: Non-current accrued liabilities B ERBENEE (2,792) (5,778)
Current portion BN D 44,045 40,040
The carrying amounts of accrued liabilities and other payables EtEEREMEMREZRMENEEAFE
approximate to their fair values. HE -
26 DEFERRED TAX 26 EIEIRIE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities BEREEEREEHEEENSMAT :
is as follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 118 174
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEE S (29,595) (27,413)
Deferred tax liabilities — net EERIAEE - T (29,477) (27,239)
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26 DEFERRED TAX /Conftinued) 26 BIEWRIA(E)

The gross movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets, EYEFAEHEAERRE R EZEBERBANS
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances BT FREZHEEEREENLEZIHN
within the same tax jurisdiction, during the year are as T
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities BERES K
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
Revaluation of related

of investment  depreciation

properties expense Leases Total
HIBHETE
ki
EMREME RBAR HE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000

BT T BT BETT BT T

At 1 April 2019 M20195F481H 26,942 2,316 15 29,273
Credited to the consolidated FARGRERRRTTA

income statement during (Ff=£10)

the year (Note 10) (1,430) (165) (15) (1,610)
Exchange realignment R E (250) - - (250)
At 31 March 2020 and 202038318 K

1 April 2020 202048 1H 25,262 2,151 - 27,413
Charged to the consolidated FRNGEE RS TN

income statement during (FFEE10)

the year (Note 10) 1,793 72 - 1,865
Exchange realignment 5 317 - - 317
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3H31H 27,372 2,223 - 29,595
Deferred tax assets BERARE

Unrealised profit
from inventories

REREFERHE

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 April 2019 20194818 (86)
Credited to the consolidated income statement FARGEWRZTRET A (HEE10)

during the year (Note 10) (88)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 72020 3831HKX2020F481H (174)
Charged to the consolidated income statement FAREGRE W R RIR(FEE10)

during the year (Note 10) 56

At 31 March 2021 M202153H31H (118)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 DEFERRED TAX /Conftinued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31 March 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of HK$72,881,000 (2020: HK$73,294,000) in
respect of tax losses amounting to HK$436,172,000 (2020:
HK$439,253,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses and deductible temporary differences as they
have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future operating
profit streams.

The unrecognised estimated tax losses are analysed by years
from expiring as follows:

R UIERARME

26 ERIEWRIA(E)

BEERBEEDNREEHEBERR  H
DETHEBARZERHABEREER
BHRZBR - R2021FE38310 » AEEL
8 L B 18 BT 18 78 5 436,172,000 78 (2020 5 -
7B #5439,253,000 0 ) ERIELEREEEEBE
72,881,0007C (20204 : ##73,294,0007T)
B AIREEEBIBEARRRZERBF
o ARZEEBER TR EREZEET R
BIRREARCENBZMBLARLE - B
AREBIELERBEE ©

BEMFHDT 2 RER A REFENOT ¢

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

With no expiry date % JZ5m B 2 69,369 70,454
Within 5 years BFER 3,120 2,840
72,489 73,294

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$780,000
(2020: HK$624,000) as at 31 March 2021 have not been
provided for in the consolidated statement of financial
position in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries
as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

BREAEPECEMESBNRAURER A&
E A EME LS EH20085E1 B 1 HRBBREA
FBATERR B AATAENFIELRE -

7202193 A31B#B%780,0007T (20204 :
7B #624,0007T) ZIELFIEH BB |MHMAE
EETHEMBATZRTFEEMS T4
EZENEREUBEMRRAELRE  ERER
AEBZEFZETEMNBATNNRERR - B
ZETFMEEEE RS TSN 1B R A RE
E] o
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28

29

SHARE CAPITAL

27 &

Shares B&in
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) L iBAR2,000,000,0008% (20204 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,0008%) B R E{EEME 1A 200,000 200,000
Number of

ordinary share Share capital

of HK$0.10 each HK$'000
BREEEE [
1HERREE BT T
Issued and fully paid ERTRAZ
At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 72020 3831HKX2021%3831H 1,185,318,349 118,532

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 14) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 10 years (2020: 1 to 10 years). The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

28 ik
FEBERBURERAERBEFEZEE -
REEUBBREZGEEBZBRAIIT -

29 BEHRRH
ESHBA
AEERBEEHEZHFHEEEREWE(K
214)  KREFTERBA 1210575 (2020
FIE10F) c BAKRT-—RAEAFAX
NEREERREBERTREHARES -

M2021F3A31H » AEEREBFTL2R
A EEAEMAIRRREBRZHRERSE
FREERAT ¢

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year 1R 6,816 7,559
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 2ESF (BIEEREWE) 9,645 5,809
Over fifth year SEHE 2,641 4,527
19,102 17,895
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENT

REMIEIRRMEE

31

32

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

30 JWAKiE
FREHENEHREENERBZMOT :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Property, plant and equipment E - MERRE 540 2,654

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following significant
related party transactions carried out in the normal course of
the Group's business during the year.

The Group’s key management personnel are the Directors of
the Company. Further details of Directors’ remuneration are
included in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the year are as follows:

31 RAEALRS
BRESMBHMRAEMBOTREES - TR
AEERAEEZEEEBKBREPETT TS
EXBEALRS °

FEBZTEEBRAERARAES - EXH
B2 E-SHIFERNREUBRRMEE3S -

32 LABSze&mIR
BHEMTARFERZREENT ¢

Financial assets at amortised cost DR EARZEMEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables B S EWIRE 45,830 43,675
Deposits and other receivables ReRHMEKRIRE
(excluding prepayments) (FEAFFRIEBRSD) 38,020 37,382
Cash and bank balances RERRITER 282,663 197,314
366,513 278,371
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LEBRFEARZEMNER
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade and bills payables ESRNRERERE 53,454 44,511
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEtEE R [ ERE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (GE&mE BRI 30,977 25,328
Lease liabilities HEas 69,037 77,520
153,468 147,359
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

33 FLRFZHMBRARREMEE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT T BET T
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBARRE 594,113 596,606
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEATFRIE R H K BRTE 302 259
Amount due from a subsidiary W — M B A R FE 30,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEELEEER 690 700
Total current assets REEEHLE 30,992 959
Total assets EEBEE 625,105 597,565
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AABEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 118,532 118,532
Reserves s (a) 506,180 478,551
Total equity mE 624,712 597,083
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEstEER EME(IRE 393 482
Total current liabilities REIAEAE 393 482
Total equity and liabilities EEREEERE 625,105 597,565

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2021 and was

signed on its behalf.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

B

EE

ARB M BARRKEN2021F6 A 258 &S
EZefE  UREATIESAREE -

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO
BiEsA

BIEERITHAEE
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY /Confinved)

Note (a): Movement of reserves of the Company

33 FLFZHMBRRAER EMEE(F)

MizE(a) : AR B2 BED

Retained
Share Capital earnings/
premium redemption Contributed  (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
RERBA/
RIVEEE BABLRRE BHBEH (REtEE) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BT T
At 1 April 2019 201954818 490,378 1,619 130 (10,603) 481,524
Loss and total comprehensive AFEFBR2AFELNE
loss for the year - - - (2,973) (2,973)
At 31 March 2020 and R2020%63A318 K&
1 April 2020 202054818 490,378 1,619 130 (13,576) 478,551
Profit and total comprehensive AFEFER2ARALE
income for the year - - - 27,629 27,629
At 31 March 2021 2021534318 490,378 1,619 130 14,053 506,180

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of

the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over

the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), a company may make distributions to its members out

of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

AABEHBHRAMBBHRBELARG 22
FEBARDBEHMUFLZBRMET R Z
EEZAD - REBFE1981F 2 AE(EE
i) —HLARARETERTEESRHBEA
IRERAFH DK o
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.

4 EENFGRER(FELFIEHI(H622
)83 c AF(BREEENREH)
BOI(Fe22GE)REFAELTHRAUMER

622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION W)
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=E&
The remuneration of each Director is set out below: ZESHESHIINT :
For the year ended 31 March 2021: BZE2021F3A31HILLFE :
Employer's Estimated
contribution to  money value
Discretionary  a retirement of other
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme benefits Total
EEZRHK  EMFEN
3. ik i BfERA  RAGEME  HHEYER ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BT BETR BETR BRI
(Note B=E()  (Note ZE() (Note MHE(i)  (Note MYEE()
Sun Tai Lun Dennis N 150 460 60 8 - 678
Sun Tao Hung Stanley BEL 110 1,880 176 18 - 2,184
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BER 110 928 88 18 - 1,144
Chan Wai Kwan Rita (Note (i) A (ia(in) 110 1,160 110 18 - 1,398
Li Ka Fai David 258 280 - - - - 280
Liu Hui Allan £l 140 - - - - 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan BTN 260 - - - - 260
Fung Yue Chun Stephen p-tid= 140 - - - - 140
Total ok 1,300 4,428 434 62 - 6,224
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) /Continved)
(a) Directors’ emoluments /Continved)

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

4 EENFGRER(FELFIEHI(H622
)83 c AF(BREEENREH)
BOI(E622GE)REELTHRUBRERD
W) (&)

(o) EZ=BM&(E)
B ZE2020F3A831HILLEE :

Employer's Estimated

contribution o money value

Discretionary ~ a retirement of other
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme benefits Total

BBk HHRER
344 ne #e WL BAGEMT  EHERER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BSTR EYTT EBT EBTR BUTR BETR

(Note FifZE())  (Note Bf3E(i)  (Note BF3E(i)  (Note FiEE()

Sun Tai Lun Dennis NG 150 1,180 - 18 - 1,348
Sun Tao Hung Stanley gl 110 1,888 410 18 - 2,426
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan HEE 110 944 = 18 - 1,072
Chan Wai Kwan Rita (Note (i) REE (M i) 110 1,180 - 18 - 1,308
Au Man Chung Malcolm (Note (iv)) B3 (MraE(v) 83 - - - - 83
Li Ka Fai David EX {0 280 - - - - 280
Liu Hui Allan e 140 - - - - 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan BFRR 245 - - - - 25
Fung Yue Chun Stephen i) 140 - - - - 140
Total 8 1368 5,192 410 n - 7,002
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) /Continved)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments /Conftinued)
Note:

(i) Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in
respect of their services as Directors to the Company.

(i)  Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in
respect of their management services to the Group.

(iii) Appointed on 1 April 2019.
(iv) Resigned on 16 August 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available Directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available Directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

As at 31 March 2021, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such Directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2020: Nil).

4 EENFGRER(FELFIEHI(H622
)83 c AF(BREEENREH)
BOI(Fe22GE)REFAELTHRAUMER
W) (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

E=iie ()
BIEE

() ESERHEHEERLAEZZRBECEXN
HEW 2B E -

iy EFREDBAEEEHEERBECEN
HEWZBE -

(i) MA2019F481BEERME -
(iv) H2019F8H16HEHTE °
EFRABEFIREILERGER

FRBEESC WIS WEERAKIE
ML EATEFI (20205 © ) o

HRUEFERBRAF=H RGN SEK
B E

HZE2021F3A31BLFE » KEEM
ERRHESREQETME=ZFXARE
(20204 : #&) ©

FRUEE HARRIERAMRERES
ERAMER ERRRAMXZHEH

M2021%F3831H » MELUES - HZ#%
EERNESEEENER EERKHEM
RS EZH (20205 : ) o

EERZS RISSHHERER

AATBBEURDNBRMER —FHETLHEALE
EEKER MAQARESHEERBER
BFEAEZARNFRRFRAEMEEFE
WEARS - THREH(2020F : &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 35 REREETH
(a) Significant non-cash transaction (a) EXFRERH
During the year ended 31 March 2020, certain capital BZE2020F3831HILEFE » FEFIMER
injection made by a non-controlling shareholder was REBERMREBEB B 126,0007T1F
conducted through a transfer of furniture and fixture of EFEE o
HK$126,000.
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEFHEENABRYHIR
activities
Lease liabilities
HEas
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 April 2019 M2019%F481H 91,070
Cashflows HE&ERE (50,935)
Addition i 39,180
Rent concession from lessors HEAEESER (1,795)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 72020538318 K2020%F481H 77,520
Cashflows HERE (45,693)
Addition 0 40,129
Lease modification HEBS (217)
Rent concession from lessors HEABESER (2,702)
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3H31H 69,037
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Details of Investment Properties

REVZEFHE
As at 31 March 2021
7202138318

Location Category of lease Existing use
& HA®ER BERAR
Unit D on the 1st Floor and B Medium term leasehold Warehouse
Car Park Space Nos. 16 B HEL =4}
and 17 on the Ground Floor ALH
and Car Park Space No. 10 HEEE215%
on the Lower Ground Floor REIEKRE1EDEN -
Eldex Industrial Building T EEMI16K 175 R
21 Ma Tau Wai Road TR FEL 1057
Hunghom
Kowloon
Hong Kong
8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre REARKENE Medium term leasehold Commercial
588 Yan An East Road b RS [EES
Huang Pu District BEHE
Shanghai 22 % 58855
People’s Republic of China RBBEEDL8E
Units 2305 and 2307 BE Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre %ﬁ?i HHEIAY
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road B H1E220-2485
New Territories ST E 002308
Hong Kong 2305k 2307Z
Unit No. 6 on 6th Floor together with %1% Medium term leasehold Commercial
Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 HHEN S
on Ground Floor, Block C n)‘f'ﬁLhﬁ
Ko Fai Industrial Building BEIEAEMEER
No. 7 Ko Fai Road CHEESh T B8R /20 SR 837
Kowloon 516035
Hong Kong
Units 2509, 2511-16 ;E‘/% Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 25th Floor %ﬁ HERTE A [EES
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre iELZZO 248%
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road EITEFN258
New Territories 2509&251 1-16E
Hong Kong
Vehicle Parking Space E Medium term leasehold Commercial
No. 72 on 1st Floor 3 FHIEL e
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre ?riEZE 220-248%;
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road EETED LI BERERRE
New Territories 72%;
Hong Kong
Whole of 27th Level and FEARKENE Medium term leasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 ERAE TR E S
Guang Fa Bank Building BM
No. 83 Lower Long Lin Road RILE
Dongshan District EMTIR835
Guangzhou BRBTAE
Guangdong Province 272 REFEIT -
People’s Republic of China 381395
Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level EF%AE e Medium term leasehold Commercial
Jin Cheng Zhong Xin b RHEIEA %
4th District, Fang Qun Garden FHE
Fang Zhuang District FHEZENE
Beijing EH PO
People’s Republic of China 14821401-1408F
Unit No. 4 on Levels 17/18 together with EF%AE?UFH Long term Ieasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F = HHEY [5ES
Golden Bridge Mansion EER
2077 Yan An Road West EZ AR 20775
Changning District EBEAE
Shanghai 17181B4ER
People’s Republic of China EEEN105%
Unit C-13, C-14, C-15 HEARENE Long term leasehold Commercial
An’Xin Building sEE REHEA ES
Heping Main Road ={nli)
(Yanjiang 4th Road), Haikou FE KRB (B T4E)
Hainan Province ZIERE
People’s Republic of China C-13+C-14 ~ C-15%
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Corporate Information
AEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Chan Wai Kwan Rita

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman) (re-designated as Non-executive
Director on 14 August 2020)

Fung Yue Chun Stephen

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Li Ka Fai David

Liu Hui Allan

Wong Chi Yun Allan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Wai Kwan Rita

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
MUFG Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong

Exw

HITEER

BRIESL (B EERITEARE)
BRERR

REE

FBITESE

Bt (EE)(R2020F8 B 148 AR BFEHTES)

B

BIUFRTEE
FRIE

26

B

LFIRE

REE

FERTT
PERIT(EB)BRAAE
PEIIERT (M) BRAR
WXL =FURRTT

BB LSELRITBEROA

54 1]
BORKES SR
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Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

FERIEMNER
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China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
REREZMRERRAE
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
FRTEBELTHIE220- 248 T E T E 08k
Fax f8HK: (852) 2409 0294
Email EEB: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk
website #i4: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk



www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
B )

CHINA-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEREBIMNEERER QT
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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